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Tick appropriate box.
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2 Details of large proprietary company

See Guide for definfion of lerge end small 1 the company Is a lerge proprietaty company that is not & disclesing entity, please complete the following information as
proprietary companies, at the end of the financial year for which the financial staterments relate:

A What is the consolidated revenue of the large proprietary company and fhe entities that # controls 7

I“ |

B What is the value of the consofidated gross assels of the large propristary company and the eniities tha i controls 7

]
L |
G How many employees are employed by the large proprielary company and fhe entities that it contrals?

O How many members does the lage proprietary company have?

4

3 Auditor’s report

Were the financial statements audited?

Yes %2\10
%Ef yes, does the auditer's report {3308) for the financial i o, 5 there a class order exemption curent for audit

year contein & statement of raefief?
Reasons for the auditor not being satisfied as to D D
the matters eefesred to in $3077 Yes No

m‘(a Nc

Details of the deficiency, filure or shortcoming
concerning any matter referred o in 53077

L7 ves X wo

4 Detaits of current auditor or auditors

Registared schemes must advise ASIC Auditor renistration number ffor individual auditor or authorised audit company)
of the appeintment of 2n auditor on a ]
rormm 3137 Appointment of scheme auditnr - ‘
within 14 days of the appointment of the ~ Famelly name Giver: name
audior. . i | —I
ar
Company name

L Ernst £ Youna i
ACNIBN J
{752 3BY 12T 44|

o
Fim name (if applicable)

f

ASIC Form 388 1 Juiy 20%6 Page dotd
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4 Continued... Details of current auditor or auditors

Office, unit level

- water front Place ]
Sireel number and Street name
|\ Enale Syeek ]
SuburbfCity v StatelTerritory Posicode
| Brshane Y7 | 4o ]

A comipany may have iwo appointed
auditors, provided that both avditers were
appointed on the same date. Otherwise, an
appoirted awditar mst resign, be removed
or atherwise ceased before a subsequent
appointment may be made.

Country {f not Austratia)

]

Cate of sppointment

L o))

O M MO

Auditor registration number {for individual auditor or authorised audi companyt

!

Family name Given nams

1 ]

or
{ompany name

ACN/ABN

o
Fimn name (X applicable)

i i

Dffice, unit, level

Street number and Street rame

SuburbiCity StatefTerritory Postoods

! . N

Country {if not Australia

L 1

5 Statements and reports to be attached to this form

ASIC Form 388

Financiat statements for fne vear {as reguired by $295(2) ard accounting slandards)

+ Statement of comprehensive income, may also include & separale income statement for the year
Staternent of financial position as atthe end of the year

+  Statement of cash flaws for the year

* Siglement of changes in equity

+  ifrequired by accounting standerds - the consolidation statements of comprehensive incomafincome statement,
financial positon, cash flows ard changes in equity.

Notes to financial statements {see 5205{3}}
Disclosures raquiced by the reguiations
+  Notes required by the szcounting standards
= Any other information necessary to give a rue and fair viaw {see 5287}
The signed directors’ declaration about the statements and notes (see 5285(43}
The signed directors’ report for the year, including the copy of the auditor's independence declerstion (s268 to 53004)
Signed suditor's report required under 308 and s314

Concise report {if any) {see s314)

1 Juty 2010 Page 3 of 4
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Signature

See Guide for details of signatory.

I certify that the ettached documenis marked ( ) ere a fruz copy of the origing reporis required to be lodged under
5310 of the Camporations Acl 2001,

Name ,

| Lisa Oarcnj

Snature

({ase] ]

/

Capacity

Director

Cempany secratary
Dale signed

RICHHARIN

B o] M M [y Y]

Lodgement

ABIC Form 388

Send completed and signed forms fo: For help or more information
Austraftan Securtiies and Investments Commission, Telephone 1300 300 630

PO Box 4000, Gippsiand Mail Centre VIC 3841, Email info.enquines@asic aov.ay

Web OV, ASIC Y. au
Or iodge the form electronically by

visiling the ASIC wabsite www.asic.gov.au
sty Standerd Business Raporting enatled software. See
www.sbr.gov.au for maore details.,

1 duly 2010 Paged of 4
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2010
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report — 30 June 2010

Contents

DIRECTORS” REPORT r.vvvustcie e aneetresssassss et see s oo soees oo oo 3
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION cccoooeeooeeeeeeeeeooeeoeo oo 7
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME w.occvccmoooimieeies s oo 8
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION.......covvctmmmmresmmneeiniscecscroesmeeseemeeeeeemoes e oo ©
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS oo 10
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS _.ooo.oooooo oo 1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS c.coovovieieoneeeovse oo eeeeeeemsese s s oo 12
DIRECTORS” DECLARATION ..ocooociimiiiiiio oo eeoeesmess s 49
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ..oovvvvoenreseaeesesissneanessssssssssssesoseesoreseseessoesssee oo oo 50

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 ¢77 208
461). The Responsible Entity’s registered office is Level 4, RSL Building, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report '

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage
Income Fund, present their report of the LM First Mertgage Income Fund (“the Scheme”™) for the year ended
36 June 2010. The directors’ report is not part of the financial report,

DIRECTORS

The foliowing persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the year or
since the end of the year and up to the date of this report:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy : Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 hune 2006

Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr john O’Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in registered
first mortgages in Australia, in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with the
investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document and ASIC
Benchmark Disclosure and Update. -

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.
SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999. The Responsible
Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Envestment Management Limited, who has been the
Responsible Entity since registration of the Scheme,

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4,9
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand,

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the year the Scheme continued to invest in registered first morigage loans secured by property in
Austraiia,

The Responsible Entity dztermined from 3 March 2009 that the Scheme would not accept any applications
for investment from any person who was not an existing member of the Scheme. The Scheme stil] accepts
applications for investme:at from any person who is an existing member of the Scheme by way of rollover of
investment term, including deemed applications as part of any reinvestment of distributions.

in order fo protect the Scheme from the prevailing credit and Hquidity constraints in the property and
Pinancial markets, and the Scheme’s simultancous obligation to repay its previous external financing facility
the Responsible Entity closed the Scheme to new investments and suspended withdrawals, with the exception
of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund paymenis for distributions and expenses. Feeder
funds are other registered managed investment schemes that have invested directly i the LM First Mortgage

Income Fund.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report '

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)

The Scheme was establiched in 1999, and has met its objective during its eleven years of operation by
maintaining a stable unit price of $1.00 and delivering forecast distributions which continued fo accrue 1353
investor’s accounts during the vear.

This result is particularly pleasing given the difficult circemstances surrounding the onerous repayment terms
of the funds external financing agreement with the Commonweaith Bank of Australia.

The prime objective of the Scheme is to deliver income to investors whilst maintaining capital value of
investment in the Schemsz. The priority is to protect all investors and all fund capital,

The global financial crisis and following tiphtness in credit markets has influenced timing in relation to the
expected realisation of first mortgage assets due to borrower difficulties in obtaining finance and the
accompanied slowdown in sales of property assets. Therefore the manager has determined that the fund
remains closed to new investor applications and investor redemptions with the exception of approved

hardship withdrawals.

Subsequent to year end, the directors were able to successfully refinance the existing facility with the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia. This was the first important step in realising the ultimate strategy for the

Scheme.

The new financing facility with Deutsche Bank, Sydney allows the realisation of assets in & more timely and
composed manner and the repayment of the facility is linked to the sales of assets rather than a fixed monthly
repayment amount (refer to note 10 on page 28 for further details on this new facility).

The second step in the strategy for the Scheme is to announce a managed redemption plan for those investors
with a redemption request todged. At the same time the directors must ensure that they protect those
investors who wish to remain invested in the Scheme, The directors are currently considering all options

regarding this redemption plan,

Finally, the directors final step in the strategy is to re-open the fund for new investors, this will be achieved
via allocating an agreed percentage of funds from realisation of assets to recommence new lending and take
advantage of the many opportunities which exist for commercial lending in the Australian property market.
This in turn will enable the fund to deliver higher returns and once again attract new investors in the Scheme.

The implementation of this strategy is vltimately dependant on the resumption of normal credit conditions in
the Australian Property Market and the return to a more traditional quantum of lending by Australian bank
and non bank participants in the commercial preperty sector.

The manager has significant resources in house dedicated to the asset realisation programme and each
individual first mortgage asset has a managed exit strategy. All completed property assets are currently
available for sale and the manager expects to continue to realise proceeds from these assets in an orderly
fashion over the coming rwelve months and beyend.

This will allow over time the Scheme to continue its principal activity of investing in new repistered first
mortgages and cash within the Australian property market and provide investors with rates of return with the
appropriate risk return margin over cash with 2 stable unit price.

Net profits before distributions to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2010 was $23,642,517 (2009
$39,577,872). :
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors’ Report ‘

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)

Distributions to unitholders during the year totalled $24,770,380 (2009: $39,271,910}.

Total assets under mana;zement were $575.065,155 as at 30 June 2010 (2009: $630,789,449). Investor funds
under management decrzased during the year by $7,328,655 (2009 increased by $14,588,808). Investor
funds under management invested by related managed investment schemes in LM FMIF decreased by
$6,929,699 (2009: increased by $12,471,300) to $223,613,698 {2009: $230,543,357).

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the resuits of its operations, was as follows;:
30 June 2610 38 Jone 2009

$ b3
Net operating income/(loss) before distributions 23,642 517 39577872
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders (24,770,380)  (39,271,910)
(Increase} / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders 1,127,863 {305,962)

Net profit/(ioss) - -

UNITHOLDER FUNDS

There were $487,146,613 units on issue at 30 June 2010 {2009: $494,475,268). During the year $20,893,238
of units were issued by the Scheme (2009: $95.766,741) and $26,070,292 of units were withdrawn (2009;
$81,524,501),

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2010, the Scheme held assets to 2 total value of $575,065,155 (2009: $630,789,449). The basis
for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO THE HESPONSEBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of
Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on
behalf of the Responsible Entity:

2019 2009
$ 5
e Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Lid i 10,310,762 |
« Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Investment §,995.455 5,100,000

Management Pty Lid
e Expenses incuived bv the Responsible Entity and its associated entities
which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme's
Constitution, including administration and cusiodian fees
s  Expenses incurred by LM Administration Pty Ltd which are reimbursed
in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution, 879,091 960,259
including administracion and custodian fees
¢  Loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme that
were reimbursed to the Responsibie Entity for the administration of loa - 2,194 460
origination services
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Diirectors’ Report

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE GF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme
that occurred during the financial year under review.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 18 of the financial report there has been no matter or
circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may
affect, the Scheme’s operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the
Scheme’s state of affairs in future years,

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of
those operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity bekeves it would
likely result in unreasonable prejudice 1o the Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

i

|

l The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental
reguiations under a law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory, There have been no known
significant breaches of any other environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme,

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover
provided 1o either the officers of LM Investment Management Limited or the auditors of the Scheme.
Provided the officers of LM Investment Management Limited act in accordance with the Scheme
Constitution and the Law, the officers remain indemmnified out of the assets of the Scheme against
losses tneurred while acting on behalf of the Scheme. The auditors of the Scheme are in RO way
indemnified out of the zssets of the Scheme,

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations
Aet 2001 1s set out o page 7,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

[raddus iy

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

6 October 2010
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I

GPOBox 7878 Brishane QLD 4001

Tel: +61 73011 3333
Fax: +61 7 3011 3100
www.ey.com/au

Auditor’'s Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM investment
Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage
Income Fund

th retation to our audit of the financiat report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2010, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professionat

! condect.

E oy au."‘lmr\u:\

Ernst & Young

P rloswe

Paula McLuskie
Partner
Brisbane

& October 2010

Liability imited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standerds Legiglation
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Income

Interest revenue — morngage loans

Interest revenue — cash assets

Realised foreign exchange gain on investor
funds

Unrealised foreign exchang: gain on foreign
exchange contracts

Other income

Total revenue and other income

Expenses

Management fees

Finance costs

Custodian fees

Advisor commissions

impairment losses on niorigage loans
Unrealised foreign exchange losses on investor
fund

Realised loss on foreign exchange contracts
Lepal fees

Other expenses

Fotal expenses excluding distributions fo
unitholders

Net profit before distributions fe unitholders
Distributions paid to unithol fers

Nei profit/(ioss} after distributions o
unitholders

Other comprehensive incoms

Changes in net assets attribatable fo
unitholders

[ncome tax expense

Changes in net assels attributable vo
unitholders after income (@ expense

Notes

3(a)

H
4a)

8(d)

4(b)

3(by

30 June 2010
§

54,533,895
100,695
1,056,978

17,451

55,709,019

30 June 2009
$

68,475,219
238,603

10,898,863

79,612,685

8,995,455
12,252,878
88,163
2,133,181
6,582,816

25,725

1,180,181
58,174
749,929

15,410,762
14,082,356
123,356
2,167,826
5,056,938

91,131

69,789
3,032,655

32,066,502

40,034,813

23,642,517

(24,770,380)

39,577,872

(39.271.910)

(1,127,863)

305,962

(1,127,863}

305,962

(1,127,863)

305,962
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Prepayments

Investments

Fair value of forward exchanpge contracts
Loans end receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Distributions payabie

Fair value of forward exchange contracts

Total liabilities excluding net assets attributable to unitholders

NET ASSETS
Represented by:

Net assets attributable to unitholders
{calculated in accordance with IFRS)

Note

13(z)
12
1

10
3(b)

30 June 2016 30 June 2009
b3 b

1,976,709 1,154,822
1,668,542 17,296,353
8,401,148 6,269,970
! 1
17,451 22,344
561,601,304 606,045,959
575,065,155 630,789,449
2,481,791 1,051,369
81014217 133,000,600
4,422,534 2,234,098
- 28,714
87,918,542 136,314,181
487,146,613 494,475,268
487,146,613 494,475,268
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
For the year ended 38 June 2010

TOTAL
Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued on reinvestment of distributions

Transfers to and from the stalement of comprehensive income
Change in fair value of derivitives

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss on investor funds

Closing Balance

10

2610
b

494,475,268
17,525,140
(26,070,292)
3,368,098
(1,127,863)

(1,023,738)

487,146,613

2009
$

479,886,460
88,028,657
(81,524,501)
7,738,044
305,962
40,606

494,475 268
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2010

Cash fNlows from operating activities
Interest and distributions recejved
Management fees paid

Other operating expenses

Other income received

GST and withholding tax {paid)/received
Finance costs paid )

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Cash flews from investing activities

Payments for secured mortgage loans

Receipts from settled mortgage loans

Net cash infiow/(outfiow) from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from / (repayments) of borrowings

Cash paid on realisation of foreign exchange contracts
Receipts from the issue of units

Distributions paid

Payment for redemption of units

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing sctiviiics

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginning of the vear

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

30 June 2010
Notes b

8,508,222
(12,000,000)
(2,474,764)
2,124,736
(2,098,179)
(11,619,561)

13(b) (17.559,546)

(15.461,041)
114,763,275

99,302,234

(51,985,783)
(1.180,181)
3,606,995
(5,291,540)
(26,070,292)

(80,920,801)

821,887

1,154,822

13(a) 1,976,705

It

30 Jupe 2009
§

14,989,628
(14,693,802)
(3,247.801)
17,833
291,402
{13,869,673)

(16,511,813}

{117,016,006)
163,133,558

46,117,552

(17.000,000)

88,028,697
(32,598,445)
(81,524,501)

(43,094,249)

(13,488,510)

14,643,332

1,154,822
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™) for the vear ended 30 June 2010
was authorised for is;ue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 6

October 2010,

The Scheme is an Avstralian registered scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999, The Scheme will
terminate on 13 Apri! 2080 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme
Constitution (as amended),

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach
Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors® report.
2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting poiicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated in
the following text,

a} Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicable
Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards

Board,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets and financial liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss, that have been measured at fair

value,

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liguidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 — Presentation af
Financial Statements. All balances are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months, except
for loans and receivatles and net assets atiributable to unitholders. The amount expected to be recovered
or settled within twelve months in relation to the balances cannot be reliably determined.

The financial report is presented in Australia Dollars ($).

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which included International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS"),
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
2} Basis of accounting (Continued)
Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis the Scheme is a going concern. Since the year
end the Responsible Entity has entered into z new facility with another external financier on behalf of the
Scheme and the existing facility as at 30 June 2010 was fully repaid. This new facility agreement
provides a revised fazility of $90 million for two years with an option to extend for an additional vear, of
which $81 miilion was drawn on the 1 July 2610.

The new facility agreement requires the Scheme to make minimum repayments in priority to any
redemptions, except for hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund
expenses. In addition, where the Scheme realises assets or receives cash in settlement of secured loans it
must repay to the external financier an agreed amount that varies based on each secured loan.

There remains significant uncertainty in the financial and property markets that may impact the timing of
future cash flows. The directors believe the Scheme will be able to meet its obhigations under the
repayment plan through repayment of existing loans including the refinancing of existing loans with
alternative financing providers; the repayment of loans from related entities; the repayment of the prepaid
management fees from LM Administration Pty L1d; or the continued support from the external financier.

The directors expect that in meeting the repayment obiigations the Scheme will be in 2 position to secure
additional funding or redraw on the new facility to complete development projects valued on an “on
completion basis”, o

The Responsible Entity is also considering options for a managed redemption plan for those investors
with a redemption request lodged. The directors must atso ensure that they protect those mvestors who
wish to remain invested in the Scheme.

On this basis the directors believe the Scheme is a going concern and hence the financial report does not
include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to
the amounts and classification of {iabilities that might be necessary should the Scheme not continue as a
going concern,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2016

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b} Aecounting Standards not previously applied

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Scheme and are consistent with those
applied in the 30 Junz 2609 Annual Financial Report, except for the adoption of AASB 101: Presemation

of Financial Statements.

The Scheme has adopted the following new and revised Australian Accounting Standard issued by the
Australian Accounting and Standards Board which is mandatory to apply to the current period.
Disclosures required by this Standard that are deemed material have been included in this financial report
on the basis that they represent a significant change in information from that previously made available.

i) Presentation of Financial Statements

AASB 101 prescribes the contents and structure of the financial statements. Changes reflected in
this financiai report include:

¢ ltems of income and expense not recognised in profit or loss are now disclosed as COmMpOonents
“other comprehensive” and

¢  Other financial statements are renamed in accordance with the Standard

) New standuards and other interpretations not yet adoepted

The following are Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued
and have not been adopted for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2010.

AASB 9: Financial Instruments includes requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. These requirements improve and simplify the approach for the classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of AASB 139. The Scheme has not
yet determined the extent of the impact of AASB 9, however, application will occur from | July 2013,

AASB 9: Financial Instruments is the enly new standard that will materially impact the Scheme once
adopted. There are no other impending new accounting standards that will result in any material
change in relation te: amount recognised in the financial statements.

d) Basis of consolidation

This financial report of June 2010 comprises the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund
and its subsidiary as at at that time (“the consolidated entity™). The financial report of the subsidiary is
prepared for the same reporting period as the Scheme, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and expenses
and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in fifl, Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferved to the group and cease
to be consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the group.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010
2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
d) Basis of consolidation {Continued)

The Scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited at 30 June
2010. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this
basis consolidated financial stalements were not prepared for the year ended 30 June 2010,

e) Significant accounting judgements, esfimates ang assumptions

() Significant uccounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart
from those invelving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. No judgements have been determined to be individually significant,

(i) Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and fiabilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
s material adjustmeat to the carrying amounts of cerfain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period are:

a.  Allowasce for impairment loss on loans and receivables

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an
estimation of the value of future cash fiows through & “on completion™ valuation or the
property based on an ‘as is® valuation.

b Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial Habilities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety
of valuation techniques thar include the use of mathematical modeis. The inputs to these
models are 1aken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasibie, &
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values,

The judgments include considerations of liguidity and model inputs such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty’s), correlation and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these. factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. The models are calibrated
regularly and tested for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on any available
observable inarke: data, :
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 36 June 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts, For the purposes
of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis,

2 Distribution income

Distribution income is recognised when the unitholders’ right to receive the payment is established.

h) Interest income

interest income is recognised as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument) to the nel carrying amount of the financial asset.

i Default manapgement feeg

income from default management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the
borrower when an event of default occurs.

b)) Changes ir the fair value of invesiments

Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair value at
sale, or at year end, aad the fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both realised and
unrealised gains and losses.

k) Fees, Comimissions and other expenses
Except where included in the effective interest calculation (for financial instruments carried at

amortised cost}, fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis. Audit and compliance fees
are included with ‘cther expenses’ and are recorded on an accrual basis.

B Finance costs
Interest on borrowings is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period to which it

relates. Issue costs assoctated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the
barrowing to which they relate using the effective interest method.

i6

720



Page 21 of 55

Docld: 027353931 Org Now089 343 248

2.
m)

Finan

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments

cial instruments in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ase

classified as either financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale investments or other financial liabilities as

appro

priate. When firancial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case

of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs, The Scheme
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Allre

gular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the

Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial

assets

under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generalty by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

i} Fair value of financial assets and linbilities through profit and loss

Financial assets held for trading included forward exchange contracts. These assets are acquired
principaliy for the purpose of mitigating the risk of movements in the value of non-Australian Dollar
investor funds and facifitating forecasting of future cash flows, During the period, all derivatives are
classified as held for wading. Derivative financial instruments entered into by the Scheme do not
meet the hedge accounting eriteria as defined by AASB139. Consequently, hedge accounting is not
applied by the Scheme in the 2010 financial year.

i} Loans and receivabies

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted i an active market. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
including transa:tion costs directly attributable to the financial asset, Afier initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as weil as
throngh the amortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting period. An allowance is made
for credit fosses when there is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able to coliect the foans
and receivabies, Impairment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a result of
future events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in relation to a
loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has
previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expernise in the statement of
comprehensive income.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectability of the debs is
considered doublful by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfoiios where specific
iderdification is impracticable.

17
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
) Finarcial Instruments (Continued)

The components of impaired assets are as follows:
“Loans in arrea:s™ are joans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be
able to collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement,

“Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets acquired in full or partial settlement
of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

Where possible, the Fund seeks to restructure loans to have loans fully performing, however the
fund will take possession of the collateral where necessary. The renegotiation may involve
extending payment terms and arrangement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been
renegotiated any impairment is measured the same way as performing loans. The renegotiated
loans continue o be assessed individually and collectively for impairment.

i Loans and receivables {Continued)

“Restructured loans™ arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in
meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparabie to the revised terms. These loans are
removed from ‘restructure loans’ after a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised
terms and conditions. Loans with revised terms arc included in *loans in arrears’ when impairment
provisions are required,

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the

interest is suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity’s anaiysis of the

coliectabiiity subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined
~ to be collectible,

n) Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisors and are calculated as a
percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related
units are redeemed.

a) Payables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
Scheme prior to the end of the financial vear that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged
to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
statement of financial position as unitholders are preseatly entitled o the distributable income as at 30
June 2018 under the Scheme’s Constitution,
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Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3] Incrense/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist
of unrealtsed changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not vel assessable, expenses
accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income
previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessable
will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets atiributable to

unitholders.
q) Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to
unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the net
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capitat gains arising from the disposal of
investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are recognised.as income are transferred to
net assets attributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable unti] realised. Capital losses
are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains.

r} Goods and services tax {GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties
such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees have been passed onto the
Scheme. The Schems: qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC's} at a rate of 75%.

Hence investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Austratian Taxation
Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATO is included in receivable in the statement of financial position. Cash flows refating 10 GST are
included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
ta the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

8} Applications and redempiions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme.
Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit
redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of

units on issue,

Applications received in foreign currency denominations are initially recorded in the functional currency
by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated
unitholder funds are transtated into the Schemes functional currency at balance date, using the spot rate
prevailing at that date. Gains and iosses arising from foreign exchange translation are recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

t} Taxation

1 Under current legislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
’ the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (i.c. unitholders are presently
entitled to the income: of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of
unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject (o capital
gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses
are not distributed {o unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital
gains. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders,

u} Interesi-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

I Amortised cost is calculated by 1aking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on

settlement.

v} Capital Management

The Responsible Entity manages the Scheme’s net assets attributable to unitholders as capital, not
withstanding net assefs attributable to unitholders is classified as a fiability. The amount of net assets

attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Scheme is subject to daily
applications and redernptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Responsible Entity monitors the level of daily applications and redemptions relative to the fiquid
assefs in the Scheme.

The Scheme is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

W) Derivative financial instruments '
The Scheme uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Derivatives are recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair vajue, All

derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as
cash flow hedges, are taken directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forvard currency contracts is calculated by reference to valuations provided by the
financial institutions with which the forward exchange contracts are held.

20
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Noles to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Jusne 2010

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued}

%) Foreign currency transiations

The Scheme’s transa:tions in foreign currencies comprise applications and withdrawals of foreign

currency unitholder funds and payment of distributions. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assefs and liability denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and exchange rate gains and losses recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive income.
v} Determination of Fair Valee

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liabi lity settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their
quoted price or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include: using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantial ly the same;
discounted cash fiow analysis and option pricing models making as much use of available and
supportable market data as possible.

Refer to Note 16 to the financial statements for the methods and assumptions applied in determining fair
value for each class of financial instrument,

21
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

3. INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLBERS

a) MNog-Interest income

Changes in the fair value of investments

Other income:

Default management fees
Foreign exchange guins
Other income

b) Histributions to snithoiders

Distributions paid
Distributions payabiz

<} Distributions paid and payable
Class A
Class B
Class C

As at 30 june 2010, $2,127,691 (2009: $485,702) of distributions payable related to distributions that
were requested to be paid under the Scheme’s Constitution prior to 30 June 2010.

22

2010 2009
$ $
. 10,751,114
- 26,553
- 121,196
] 10,898,863
2010 2609
$ $
20,347,846 37,037,812
4,422,534 2,234,098
24,770,380 39.271,910
9,869,689 16,473,735
14,416,030 22,159,255
484,661 638,920
24,770,380 39.271.910
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Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended 36 June 2010

4. EXPENSES

a) Finance costs
Interest on bank loans
Facility fees

b} Other expenses

Loan origination expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
Other expenses

5. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Audit ahd review of the financial reports
Other regulatory audit services

286190 2009
$ $
9,965,991 12,218,376
2,286,887 1,863,982
12,252,878 14,082,356
. 2,194,460
401,984 478,744
347,945 359.451
749,929 3,032,655
2010 2009
3 $
370,680 461,757
31,304 16,987
401,984 478,744

These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Movements in the net assets atiributable to unitholders during the vear were as follows:

Net assets attributable to unitholders
Class A
Opening balance

Units issued during the vear

Urits redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Batance

Class B
Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Ciosing Balance

23

2010 2009
$ $
252,479,887 257,196,248
660,314 5,022,455
(2,485,991} (16,932,807
3,062,822 7,193,991
253,713,032 252,479,887
230,543,397 21$,072,097
16,282,761 75,347,798
(23,212,460} (62,877,663)
- 1,165
223,613,698 230,543,397
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Noies to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2010

6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS {Continued)

2010 2008
5 3

Class C

Opening balance 11,146,022 4,618,115
Units issued during the year 582,065 7.658.444
Units redeemed during the year (367.841) (1,714,031)
Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions - 305,276 542,888
Foreign exchange (gain}ioss on invester funds (1,623,738) 40,606
Closing Balance 10,641,784 11,146,022
Movement in changes net assets attribitable to

unitholders (821,901) 305,962
‘Total assets attributable to unitholders 487,146,613 494,475,268

Ciass A consists of unitholders who are entitled 10 receive the declared distribution rate. There are a
number of subclasses attached to class A. These consist of the following products with varying terms:

e Flexi Accourt investment option;
¢ Fixed Term Investment option; and
¢ LM Savings Plan investment opticn.

Class B consists of related Scheme unitholders. The distribution rate will be determined by the Funds
Committee which is appointed by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to
waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for
this class of unit holders.

Class C consist of unitholders who have invested in fbreigﬁ currencies and are entitled to receive the
declared disiribution rate. The class C product is Non-Australian Dollar Currency Hedged Fixed Term
Investment Option. This consists of various terms and currency products.

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitied to one
vote per unit at unitholders’ meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank
after creditors and are: equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation.

Status of investment in fund

During the 2009 vear, the Responsible Entity closed the Scheme to new investors and suspended
withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments ‘
- for distributions and expenses. Feeder funds are other registered managed investment schemes that have
invested directly in the LM First Mortgage Income Fund. Redemptions are generally to be paid within
365 days of the investment maturity term, however, redemptions have been suspended, per the
constitution, as the Responsible Entity considers the suspension of withdrawals to be in the best interest

of the members of the Scheme.

At 30 June 2010, $3083,295,443 (2009: $236,270,945) of redemptions had been requested by unitholders
but not yet paid. Of the total requested redemptions $448,589 (2009: $5,984,668) related to requests
occurring within thirty days of year end. $153,007,642 (2009: $106,607,043) had been requested more
than 30 days prior to vear end. Redemptions also rank behind repayment of external financing facilities
as detailed in Note 2(a). Of the above, $154,839,212 (2009: $123,679.234) of redemptions had been
requested by unitholders of the feeder funds. ,
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7. INVESTMENTS 2010 2009 |
L3 b3
Investment in subsidiary | ]

] !

The Scheme owns 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited at 30 June
2009. This company is in the process of being wound up and has not traded during the period. On this
basis consolidated financial statements were not prepared for the year ended 30 June 20610,

8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

2010 2009
$ 3
Secured mortgage loans 536,766,225 595,631,265
Secured mortgage loans — 2™ priority 9,205,379 7.981,694
Other unsecured loans — related party 1,829,700 5,100,000
Provision for impairment (4,800.,000) {2,667,000)
563,001,304 606,045,959

Net Inans and advances

Secured mortgage loans of $9,205,379 (2009: $7,981,694) have second priority over the security held.
The first priority is held by another party whom is entitled to $5,000,000 (2009: $5,000,000) of the
security.

a) Aggregate smounts receivable frem related parfies

2010 2009
g $
Directors and director-related entities - secured 7,849,604 7,669,590
Related managed investment schemes - secured 31,731,087 35,465,182
Related managed investment schemes - unsecured 1,829,700 5,100,000
47,410,391 48,234,772
by  Maturity analysis - Secured Mortgage Lozns
2050 200%
¥ $
Less than 3 months 474,335,296 408,431,218
3-6 mornths 80,149 902 59,866,162
6-12 months 11,486,406 37,901,770
12-18 months - 96,289,380
18-24 months - - 1,124,429
24-36 months - .
565,971,604 603,612,959
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8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)
b)  Maturity analysis -~ Secured Mortgage Loans (Continued)
The above maturity analysis is the contractual maturity of the secured loans. However, the secured

construction loans will be realised through cash flows which will occur within 5 years. The carrying
values of these foars at 30 june 2010 were $164.828,848,

<) Coneentration of risk

As at 30 June 2010 no individual foan was greater than 10% of net assets attributable to unitholders.

{200%: nil)

For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and peographical location refer to Note 15.

d) Previsions for impairment

The impairment loss expense relating to loans and receivables comprises:

2016 2008
g s

Specific provision 3,560,000 1,540,000
Collective impairment provision - .
Loans written off divectly in the statement of
comprehensive income 4,449,816 5,106,459
Provision utilized during the period (1,427,000 {1,589.521)

6,582,816 5,056,938

2016 2009

g $

Specific Provision
Opening balance 2,667,000 2,716,521
Impairment losses provided for during year 3,560,000 1,540,000
Utilisation of provisions (loans realised) (1,427,000} (1,589,521)
Closing balance 4,800,000 2,667,000
Collective impairment provision
Opening balance - -
Impainment losses provided for during year - -
Closing balance - . -
TOTAL PROVISION 4,800,000 2,667,000
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8 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)
d) Provisions for impairment (Continued)

The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into pools with similar risk
characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

2010 2469
$ 3

Movement in Defailt loans
Gross default loans opening balance 331.473,714 101,159,653
New and increased default foans 39,849,820 268,567 327
Balances written off’ (1,333,416) _ (15,307}
Returned to performing or repaid (37,095,216} (38,237,959)
Gross default loans closing balance 332,894,902 331,473,714
Specific provision (3,493,000} . (2,667,000)

329,401,902 128,806,714

Net default loamns

At 30 June 2019, the balance of loans that were past due but not impaired was $248,106,127 {2009:
$304,553,260). As per the Scheme’s policy, loans are past due once they exceed 90 days overdue.

At 30 June 2010, $84,785,951 of loans were individually impaired, with a total impairment loss of
$4,800,000.

Loans are secured by land, development property or completed construction property. The fair value of
security over loans that are past due but not impaired at 30 June 2010 was $326,365,696 (2009:

$389.017.914).

As at 30 June 2010 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of
$332.9 million (2009: $331.5 million) and had taken possession of asscts offered as collateral security
valued at $401 miliion (2009: $415.4 miliion),

interest on arrears loans is suspended and not brought to account if the Responsible Entity considered that
the amounts are not ultimately recoverable from the sale proceeds of the property. The amount of
suspended interest at 30 June 2010 totalled $20,031,170 (2009; $6,532,157).

% PAYABLES

2010 2000
$ $
Foreign currency iwaiiing investment 195 2,242
Other payabiles 2,481,596 1,049,127
2,481,793 1,051,369
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36. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2010 26009
$ $
© Secured bank loar. 81,014,217 133,000,000

On 4 September 2009, the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM Investment
Management [.imited, and the Scheme’s external financier negotiated extended terms for the $150
million facility that had matured. This facility agreement provided a revised facility of $128 million,
being the balance of the loan at that date, with a requirement for repayments to be made quarterly with
the ful! principat balence to be repaid by or on 30 June 201 0, in priority to any redemptions.

The facility agreement required the Scheme to repay 60% of all net proceeds to the externa) financer,
being the cash received from the realisation of assets with minimum cumulative quarterly repayment
amount as detailed below:

Minimum quarterly Reduced commitment and
repayment principal outstanding

30 Novembar 2009 15,000,000 113,000,000

28 February 2010 15,600,060 98,000,000

3] May 2010 15,000,000 83,000,000

30 June 2010 Any remaining balance 0

The interest rate payable on the facility was BBSY + 4.50% per annum. In the event that the repayment
was not made in accordance with the repayment plan above, the interess rate payable was increased to
BESY + 6.50%.

As detailed in Note 2(a), on the 1 July 2010 the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM
Investment Management Limited, entered into a new facility with another external financier and the
facility described above was fully repaid.

The new bank agreeraent provides a $90 million faciiity for two years with an option to extend for an
additional year with interest at 15% per annum increasing to 18% if the loan term is extended. In the
event that the repayment is not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned below, the
interest rate payable is increased 1o BBSY +5.0%.

The Scheme is also required to hold a minimum cash balance of $6 million under this facility.
The facility agreement requires the Scheme to make minimum repayments as detaiied below, These
minimum repayments must be made in priority to any redemptions, except for hardship provisions and

feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund expenses,

Minimum repayment

31 December 2010 7,060,000

30 June 2011 11,080,000

31 December 2010 11,000,000

30 June 2012 $13,500,000 if facility extended or any

remaining balance

28
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10. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Coatinued)

In additional, where the Scheme realises assets or receives cash in settiement of secured loans it must
repay to the external financier an agreed amount that varies based on each secured loan.

Where the Scheme has repaid excess of the minimum repayments required, the facility allows the
Scheme to redraw funds to complete agreed development projects or establish new loans subject to prior
approval from the external financier.

As at the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all loan covenants in the facility
agreement and the current balance of the facility at the date of this Report is $83,607.533.

The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Fund, providing Deutsche
Bank, as secured lender with first priority over the assets of the Fund.

11 RELATED PARTIES

Resporsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Invesiment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible
Entity. LM Adminisiration Pty Limited is paid a management fee directly from the Scheme,

On | February 2009, the Scheme’s arrangement in relation to management fees was amended. The basis
of the management fee calculation remains unchanged however the revised agreement provides that LV
Investment Management Limited is required to be paid up to $1 million per month for administration and
fund management services, with any monthly management fee in excess of $1 million to be paid to LM
Administration Pty Limited for administration services provided on behalf of LM Investrnent
Management Limited.

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is LM Investment Management Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 14.

Directors’ remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of
remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity
in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 14,
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1L RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Directors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set

out below,
2010 2609
g $
- LM Investment Management [L.imited - -
- Directors and dircetor related entities - -
- Other Associates of LM Investment
Management Limited 223,613,698 230,543,397

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application
and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 2010
the Scheme had no investments in otirer schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its

affiliates (2009: nil).

Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their direcior-related entities,
may invest ar withdrew from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and
corditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note,
no director has entered info a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no materizl contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end. All
transaction was approved on an arm’s lenpth basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Responsible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty
Limited is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets. On | February 2009 the
Scheme’s arrangement in reation to management fees was amended. The basis of the management fee
caleulation remains uachanged however the revised agreement provides that LM Investment
Maragement Limited is required to be paid up to $1 million per month for administration and fund
management services, with any monthly management fee in excess of $1 miilion to be paid 1o LM
Adminisiration Pty Limited for administration services provided on behalf of LM Investment
Management Limited.

During the year, management fees of $8,995,455 (2009: §15,410,762) were paid or payable by the
Scheme, Of these fees $8,995,455 (2009: §5,100,000) was paid or payable to LM investment
Management Limited and $0 (200%: $10,310,762) was paid or payable to LM Administration Pry
Limited.

During the year, ioan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme were 2,769,913
(2009: $4,366,378) of which nil (2009: $2,194,460} was reimbursed by the Scheme to the Responsibie
Entity for the administration of loan origination services,
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i1 RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Orther transactions with the Scheme (Continued)

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity, to transfer three
mortgage leans 1o the value of $33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security o the LM Managed
Performance Fund (1M MPF). There is a fixed charge over these two specific secured properties plus a
floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF (o provide security to the Scheme in the event of
default by the LM MPF. This Joan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at 10%, with the
interest being paid to 30 June 2010. Since 2009, LM MPF has sold one of the properties and repaid $3.9
million to the Scheme. Subsequent to the year end, the Credit Committee has agreed to extend the
repayment term of the loan to 28 August 2011 and reduce the interest rate to 7%.

The Scheme has advenced funds to a related scheme, the LM Marnaged Performance Fund, to finance a
Joint venture entered into with a borrower of the Scheme. At 30 June 2010, the balance of the foan 1o the
related Scheme was $9,563,238 (2009: $9,563,238), which is secured by first mortgage of the assets of
the unrelated borrower and by a guarantee from the LM Managed Performance Fund. This ican has been
subject to the normal credit approval review procedures of the Scheme and is a fully serviced loan with

interest being paid monthiy.

The LM MPF has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the LM First Mortgage Income
Fund totalling $53,631.982 (2009: $46,905,578). The LM MPF may on: occasion pay development and
construction costs on those related loass. As part of the normal role as second mortgagee, the related
scheme will fund interest payments from time to time within approved loan facility limits. During the 30
June 2010 year, interest payments totalling $413,722 (2009: $1,903,971) were paid from the related
scheme on behalf of the borrowers.

At 3G June 2008, management assigned 4 $5,100,000 receivable within the Scheme from LM Investment
Management Limited to LM MPF. Originally, the receivable was to accrue inferest at 10% and expire on
30 June 2009. Since 30 June 2009, the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity has agreed to extend
the repayment term of this receivable to 30 June 2010, The balance at 3¢ June 2010 was $1,829,700,
however has been repaid subsequent to vear end.
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RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Other transacrions with the Scheme (Continned)

Responsible Entity remuneration received or
due and receivable

Management fees for the year paid or
payable directly from LM Administration
Pty Limited

Management feus for the year paid or
payable from LM Investment
Management Limited.

Expenses mcluding administration
expenses incurred by the Responsible
Entity and its associated entities, which
are reimbursed in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution.

Expenses inciuding administration
expenses incurred by LM Administration
Pty Limited, which are reimbursed in
accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution,

Loan origination fees received by
borrowers within the Scheme that were
reimbursed to the Responsible Entity for
the administration of loan origination
services

Custodian's remunzration

Custodian’s fees paid by the Scheme

32

2016

8,995,455

879,091

88,163

2009

10,310,762

5,100,000

960,259

2,194,460

123,356
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RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Other transactions with the Scheme {Continued)

Balance with related parties 2610 2009
Aggregate amounts receivable from related
parties by the Scheme were as follows:

¢ .M Administration Pty Limited 8,200,000 6,000,000
{managemcnt fees prepaid by the
Scheme)(i)

e Australian Internationa) investments Pty 7,849,604 7,669,589
Limited (ii}

® LM Managed Performance Fund (iii) 31,357,596 41,745,359

e LM Currency Protected Australian - 160,000
Income Fund fhv)

Agprepate amounts payable to related parties

from the Scheme were as foliows:

e john O'Sullivan v) 66,984 17,794

). These amounts are included in prepayments of $8,401,148 at 30 June 2019 (2009 $6,269,970). No

i),

amouns are payable to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments
during the year was $6,183,333(2009: $7,973,684) which was non-interest bearing. interest foregone
on the above amount if caiculated at the weighted average cash rate of 3.57% (2009: 4.75%) would
have been $220,745 (200%: $378,750). 1f this revenue had been collected, the sum foregone would
have been paid to LM Administration Pty Limited as management fees or reduction in change in net
assets attributable to unitholders during the year.

The prepaid management fee increased due to the directors resolving to absorb an additional
provision for impairment loss through a reduction of management fee charged, this resulted in an
increase in prepaid management fee. This prepaid management fee will be recovered through LM
Administration Pty Limited’s Agreement to offset future payable management fees or through
guarantee from Peter Charles Drake,

Peter Charles Drike is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Pty
Limited which is a joint borrower in a secured loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June

-2010 for $7,849,604 (2009 $7,669,589). This transaction was approved on an arm’s iength basis and

is on normal terms and conditions.

This amount relates to the assignment of debt of $1,829,700 (2009: 5, 100,000) from LM
Administration Pty Limited to LM MPF which was originally a prepayment of management fees
from the Scheme to I.M Administration Pty Limited. Plus the loans and receivable balance at 30
June 2010 of $29,527,890 (2009: $36,645,359).

This amount relates to payments for margin calls on behaif of LM Currency Protecied Australian
Income Fund. This transaction was paid on normal terms and at arm’s length.

John O’Sullivar is the beneficial owner of O’Sullivan Capital Management Limited, which has been
engaged by LM Investment Management Limited to provide marketing services in New Zealand. For
the year ended 30 June 2010, $121,541 (2009: $112,134) in adviser marketing commission has been
carned, with $66,984 (2009:17,794) remaining payable. This engagement is on normal commercial
terms and at arm’'s length,
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11. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Unitholder investing activiiies

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its afTiliates including
directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited

are set out below:
Entity

36 June 2010

LM Currency Protected
Australian Income Fund
LM Institutional Currency
Protected Australian Income
Fund

LM Managed Performance
Fund

LM Wholesale First Morigage
Income Fund

LM Austraiian Income Fund
Dhani Darcy

Fotal

Entity

30 June 2609

LM Currency Protected
Australian Income Fund
LM Institutional Currency
Protected Australian Income
Fund

LM Managed Performzance
Fund

LM Wholesale First Mortgage
Income Fund

LM Australian Income Fund
Dhani Darcy

Toial

Investment at  Interest Units Units Distribution

year end held in the issued redeemed s paid and

$ scheme at  during the during the payable
year ead year year

118,040,000 24.02% 10,282,468 18,917,468 8,971,025
9,780,000 2.00% 123755 1,526,550 675,503
96,476,500 19.71% 4,767,643 2,768,443 4,769,522
226 0.00% 10 - -
224,296,726 45.83% 16287671 23,212 461 14,416,050
investment at  Interest Units Units Distribution

year end held in the issued redeemed s paid and

$ scheme at  during the  during the payabie
year end year year

126,675,000 25.56% 38,774376 31,399376 12,847,979
190,069,000 2.03% 7545535 4,976,515 1,051,556
- - 16,450,507 16,900,507 123,644
94,477,360 19.06% 12,023,535 9,046,235 8,132,510
- 0% 555,000 555,000 3,565
- 0% 216 216 19
231,221,300 46.65% 75,.349,16% 62,877,869 22,159,273
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12. RECEIVABLES

2010 _ 2009

3 ‘ $
Interest and distribuiion receivable - -
Mortgage interest receivable 1,285,212 1,596,427
Mortgage interest receivable ~ related party - 3,132,014
Penalty interest receivable 174,998 192,525
Default management fees receivable - 11,995,827
GST receivable 176,815 163,315
Other 3,517 213,245

1,668,542 17,296,353

During the year, the penalty interest receivable was capitalised onto the secured mortgage loan balance.
Refer Note 8 Loans znd Receivables.

13, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a} Reconciliation of cash and cash eguivalents
For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash F lows, cash and cash

eguivalents comprise:

2610 2009
$ S
- Cash at bank and in hand _ 1,976,706 1,154,822

Cash at bank and in hiand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $1,976,709 (2009: $1,154,822),

As at 30 June 2010 $388,736 (2009: $580,941) of cash at bank was held in foreign exchange margin
accounts and therefore was not available for use by the Scheme. -
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

b} Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to unithelders to net cash flows from
operating activities

2010 2009
$ 3

Change in net assets attributable to unitholders (1,127,863) 305,962
Adjustments for:

Non cash impairment expense 6,582,816 5,056,938
Non cash interest inzome (50,847,584) (50,395,681)
Distributions to unitholders 24,770,380 39,271,910
Gains/loss on foreign exchange contracts 1,162,730 -
Gains/loss on investor funds {1,031,253) -
(Increase)/decrease in interest receivable 331,742 (3,257,517}
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 1,169,064 (8,654,940)
increase/(decrease) in payables 1,430,422 L,161.515
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating

activities _ (17,559,546) 16,511,813

) Reinvestment of distributions
Dwring the financial year, the Scheme issued $3,368,098 of units (200%9: £7,738,044) as a result of

reinvestment of distributions by unitholders. These transactions have not been included in the Statement of
Cash Flows. '

i4. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(2) Details of Key Ranagement Personme}
(i) Key Management Personnel

The Key Manageme:t Personne! (“KMP”) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible
Entity. The Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr Peter Charles Dirake Appointed 31 Janvary 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy . Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006

Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

Non-executive directors

Mr John O’Sullivan Appointed 28 November 2007
36
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14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES {Continuned)
(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnet
(i Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Limited, appointed by LM Investment
Management Limited as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any
remuneration direct]y from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the
Scheme. The remuncration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP’s cost
of remuneration applicabie to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these costs {for disclosure

purposes only) are discussed below.
(i Executive Directors

The Executive Direc:ors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited are
responsibie for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsibie
Entity. The Executivs directors assess the appropriateness of the nature 2nd amount of emoluments of the
KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is
intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optima! for the recipient-without creating undue cost
for the Responsible Entity.

It is the Executive Directors” policy that employment agreements shalt only be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

{iii}  Non- executive directors

Fees paid 1o non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes
into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are
not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and
conditions.

fiv) Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been
aliocated to each scheme, The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP
performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the
remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specificalty on a scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across all schemes.
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14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES {Continued)

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnpel

2010 20069
g 5
Short term 228,281 86,352
Post emplovment 17,593 6,680
Other long term . -
Termination benefits - -
Equity based payment - -
Other - -

Loans 16 Specified KVP

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their
reiated entities during the period.

(¢} Other Transuctions and Balances with Specified KMP

Other than those items disclosed in the related party Note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions
and balances with specified KMP,

15, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
a} Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies, and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial instruments are inherent in the Scheme’s activities, and are
managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The Scheme is
exposed to credit risk, liguidity risk, and market risk,

Financial instrumen-s of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of
generating a return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash
cquivalents, net assets atiributable to unitholders, and other financial instruments such as trade debtors
and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these
financial instruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk

variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is
disclosed below. Information about the total fair value of financial instruments exposed to risk, as wel]
as compliance with established investment mandate limits, is also monitored by the Responsible Entity, .
These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as
the level of risk that the Scheme is willing to accept.
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15, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsibie Entity on a regular
basis as deemed appropriate, including the fund manager, compHance manager, other key management,
Risk and Investmer.t Committees, and uitimately the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity.

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage
exposures resulting from changes in foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political, and
other conditions.

In order to aveid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure to ensure
concenirations of risk remain within acceptable levels and either reduces the eXPOSUre Or Uses
derivative instruments and collateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise.

b} Credit Risk

Credit risk represerts the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial joss,

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Schesme, other than derivatives, the
Scheme’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure
equal to the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the Statement of financial position. This does
not represent the maximum risk exposure that conld arise in the future as a result of changes in values,
but best represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date,

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive
fair values,

The Scheme minimizes credit risk by:

- undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers

- dealing with Australian reguiated banks for cash balances;

- obtaining independent valuations for all loans; and

*  maintaining an average loan to valuation ratio not exceeding 75% of the mortgage securities.

As at year end, 61% {2009 59%) of the mortgage loans were secured by a combination of completed
development projects (industrial 14% (2009: 13%) and residential 41% (2009: 38%) and land 6%
(2009: 8%)), 18% {2009: 26%) were secured by commercial property and 21% (2009: 15%;) of the
mortgage loans were secured on construction and development projects in the residential sector.

The carrying amouat of renegotiated loans which would have been past due or impaired at 30 june
2010 was 564,366, 00.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2010

IS, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

Risk concentrations of credit rick
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The
percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2010 2009

Within 40km of Sydney CBD 2.53% 9.64%
New South Wales — Other 26.30% 22.33%
Within 40km of Meibourne CBD 3.56% 6.33%
Victoria — Other 2.68% 0.71%
Queensland — Orher 55.96% 52.09%
Canberra - Other 1.39% [.35%
Western Australia 6.92% 7.02%
Tasmania 0.63% 0.53%

100.00% A 100.00%

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying value of
the assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position. No singie mortgage investment exceeds
10% of the Scheme which ensure that there is no concentration of risk.

The Scheme has « concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as all foreign
currency swaps a:e entered into with the same counterparties.

Credit quality of morigage loans

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in
accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The Scheme’s exposure in each category is
monttored on a duily basis. This review process allows the Responsible Entity to assess the potentiaj
loss as a result of risks and take corrective action.

As at 30 June 2010 the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating to loans in default of
$332.9 million (2609: $331.5 million) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security
valued at $401 million (2009: $$415.4million).

¢} Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to
investment activities or funding unitholder redemptions.

The nature.of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that liquidity be managed
cautiousiy and aligned to the redemnptions policy outlined within the constitution of the Scheme, At
30 june 2010, the redemptions requested from unitholders but not paid was $153,456,231 (2009
$112,591,711). An additional $156,019,147 (2009: 123,679,234) of redemptions had been requested
by unitholders of the feeder funds — refer 1o Note 6.

4]
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016

15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

¢} Liquidity risk (Continued)

During the 2009 vear, the Responsible Entity closed the Scheme to new investors and suspended
withdrawais, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund
payments for distributions and expenses. Feeder funds are other registered managed investment
schemes that have invested directly in the LM First Mortgage Income Fund. Redemptions are
generally to be paid within 365 days of the investment maturity term, however, redemptions have
been suspended, jper the constitution, as the Responsible Entity considers the suspension of
withdrawais to be in the best interest of the members of the Scheme.

At 5 October 2010, $160,271,420 of redemptions had been requested by unitholders but not vet paid.
Redemptions alsa rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as detailed in Note 2(a).

The Responsible Entity empioys risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet
its obligations as above, The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests
for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by
maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liquidity requirements of
both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all times the Scheme has
adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover fund obligations and that liquidity is managed within the

Scheme’s policies and limits.
Maturity Analysiv of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets
attributable to unitholders, fair value of foreign exchange contracts and the secured bank loan. Trade
and other payablzs and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typically settied
within 30 days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of year end.

Net assets attributable to unitholders mature over the following periods:

Period from 30 June 2010 Value
Due and payable* 155,401,717
<12 mcmhs. 418,343,610
12.24 months 33,132,319
24-36 months 1,660,387
36-48 months 284348
>48 months 147,673
Tot.ai 608,970,054
42
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

15. FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued}

* This balance represents redemptions requested but not paid &t 30 June 2010 of $155,401,717 (20009:
$112,591,711).

The secured bank foan is repayable by 30 June 2012, as detailed in Note 2(a)and 10, When drawn,
the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme.

d) Market risk

[ Market risk is the: risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments wil! fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.
Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring
that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate fimits and
investment strategies.

Taterest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows
or the fair value of financial instruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in

i interest bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of
financial assets and financial liabilities is set out below:
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747



Page 48 of 55 Docld: 027353931 Org No:089 343 288

s

“FULIBAq JSDI3IUI-UOU 1B SH|IGEI] PUE Sjasse JRESUBUL] f2UI0 ||V

165 P81 FLY 56L°C9L 880 0R0VIrLs - BYU'66Z11S  POT'I08°L9S  (BLISYEIEI) (805 Le050) 8164,
(ooo'o00cs1) (Zizvioiigy - - - - (000000EE)  (L1TPi018) SER 686 H Al j1o8] ueoT]
006'001'S 00L°6Z8'1 - - 000'001'S 0GL'6T8] - - 401 001 8 UBOf paInadsin
LSE'TI9C09 b0 [ £6'S98 080'V ¥ L6 8F1661°005  p09'1L6'S9E - - WE 966 g {55018} suroy a8eBpow painoag
TTRPSI'T 60L°946°) - - - - ZZTR'FSI°I 60L°926") Sy LSE (M) SjuefaAlnba ysua pue yse)

%o Yo

6007 010z 6007 8107 6007 010z 6007 016z 800 0102
s48ak g uBY) $S3 Ing
41834 § wayy azow Uf 3ane B3 | uBy} £53) 41 2403 U RECRETT: 3japn
0} PIVIBIJUGD mu" _.wwomm G} D3ldBIIUOY mu_wm.:_vmm. wua..?»m
[B10 §, 3188 JSALIUL PAxig ajay 1saaaiuy dunwogy payd A
AWTHIS
(penunuo’) SFIZIIOL ANY STALLOALGO LINIWEIVNVIA MSTH TVIONVNIA 1!

0107 3ung (g papus tead 9Y) 10] SUIMWIIBEG [RIDUBULY o) 0} $3}0}]

NAA TWOINT ADVILHOW LSHII W1

748



Page 45 of 35 Docld: 027353931 Org No:089 343 288

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2610

15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ANE POLICIES (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme’s Statement of Comprehensive Income to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constan,

The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest
rates on the interest income for ane year, based on the financial instruments heid at 30 June 20010,

Accounting assumplions
The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates,

2010

Sensitivity of interest
incorne ($000's)

Change in basis points

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
50 50 2,825 2,825
Financial Instruments 160 160 5,650 5,650

2009

Change in basis points

Sensitivity of interest
income ($000’s)

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
50 50 3,124 3,124
Financial instruments 100 100 6,247 6,247

Currency risk :
Currency risk ts the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due

to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principafly to
hedge the foreign exchange risk implicit in the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign
currencies and to secure 2 particular exchange rate for a planned purchase or sale of investments. The term
of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair value of forwaid exchange contracts heid at 30 June 2010 was $17,451 (2009 $6,370).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 fune 2010 was $1 0,266,314
(2009: $11,253,138).

The table below indicat:s the currencies to which the Scheme had significant exposure at 30 June 2010 on
its monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, with al} other variables held constant.

Foreign currency
Investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Australian doliar CUITENCY MOVEMENRLS.

The fund manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016

15, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

The FFECs are facilitated by several banking firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and
investors. The below table is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its obligation and the
fund therefore secks an alternative party to transact the FFEC.

Accounting Assumptions- Variability of foreign currency
The sensitivity is based on the volatility of changes in gioba currency.

2010
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
exposure: by currency % to unitholders
{000°s) (000°s)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
CAD 14 18 10 ] 2
EUR 1,432 10 10 130 159
GBP 2,139 101 10 194 238
HKD 8 HY ] 10 ] i
Py 144 10 10 13 16
NZD 4,720 10 16 445 505
SGD 212 10 10 19 24
THB 33 10 10 3 4
TRY 187 190 10 b7 21
USD 1,381 10 10 126 153
2009
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
) exposure by cusrency % to unitholders
(000°s) {000°s)
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
EUR 1,716 14 1o 172 172
GBP 2.725 10 10 273 273
NZD 4,523 H i0 452 452
TRY 30; 16 1o 30 30
Usp 1,556 10 i0 156 156
HKD 182 10 HO 18 18
SGD 217 ¢ 10 22 22
THB 33 10 10 3 3
Eguity Risk

The Scheme is not subject to equity risk at 3¢ June 2010,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes {o the Financial Stafements for the year ended 30 June 2010

i6. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried at
their fair value as disclesed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that approximate their fair

values.,

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assﬁmpiions adopted in determining fair values for investments.
Disclosed below is the 7air value of the Scheme*s financial instruments.

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and
liabilities.

Fair value: The Scheme uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The
methods comprise:

Level I —the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the assel or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices);

Level 3 —the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data.

I Fair Value Carrying
Amount

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
b3 b $ 3 g

Financial Assets
Forward currency

contracis

17,451

17,451

17,451

Total Financial
Assets

17,451

17,451

17,451

Financial
Lighilities

Forward currency
contracts

Total Financial
Liabilitics

47

The fair values of cwrency exchange coniracts (forwards and swaps) are calculated by reference to
current exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity and risk profiles.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Nuotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2010

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no matertal contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 fune 2010

8. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

No significant events have cccurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the
Scheme disclosed in the: balance sheet as at 30 June 2010 or on the results and cash flows of the Scheme for

the year ended on that date, other than those detailed bejow:

(n) Negotiation 5f new lean facility

On 1 July 2610, the Directors of the Responsible Entity, LM Investment Management Limited, of the
Scheme entered into a new loan facility another external financier and fully repaid the existing external
financier. The new bank agreement provides a $90 miflion faciiity for two years with an option to extend
for an additional year. A condition of the new loan facility is repayment of the facility in line with the
agreed repayment plan, as disclosed in Note 2(a}.

The interest rale payabie on the new facility is 15% per annum. In the event that the repayment is not made
in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned above, the interest rate payable is increased to BBSY
+5.0%.

(b) Status of distributions payabie

As at 30 June 2010, $2,127,691 of distributions payable related to distributions that were reguired to be paid
under the Scheme’s Constitution prior to 30 June 2010, As at 5 Octaber 201 0, these distributions remain
payable. In addition $1,627,770 of distributions payable as at 5 October 2010 that were reguired to be paid
under the Scheme”s Constitution remain payable.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Manzgement Limited, | state
that:

a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out or: pages 8 to 48 arc in
accordance with the Corporations Act 200!, including;

(i) complving with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and

(i1) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2016, and of
its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
financial year ended on that date.

(iii} the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are prepared in
compl:ance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as made by the

International Accounting Standards Board,

b} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable; and

¢) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution.

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited,

1518

Lisa Darcy

Director
Gold Coast
6 October 2010
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GPQ Box 7878 Brisbane OLD 4001

Tel: +61 73013 3333
Fax:+61 73011 3100

I

WWW.ey.com/au

Independent audifor’s report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage
income Fund

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (the Scheme”), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and statement of cash flows for the year ended
on that date, & summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’

declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsible entity of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial report in accordance with the Austraiian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining infernat controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2, the directors
also state that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements refating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement,

An audit Involves performing procedures {o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuras in the
financial report, The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal contruls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
crder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit aiso includes evatuating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaiuating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence reguirements of the Corporations Act 2001, We have
given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included

in the directors’ report.

Liability fmited by a scheme approved
urides Professional Slancards Legislation ]
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Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:
1. the financial report of LM First Mortgage income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:
(> - giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM First Mortgage Income Fund at 30
June 2010 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
(i) complying with Austrafian Accounting Standards (inciuding the Australian Accounting
Interpretalions) and the Corporations Reguiafions 2001.
2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board..

Ermsy &\TC..JHQJ

Ernst & Young

P-P \"t&:ass\.c.\é | [‘

Paula MciLuskie
Partner
Brisbane

6 October 2010
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: 185
AUSTRALIAN SECURELIES., .\,
& INVESTMENTS '

R
| |

234, 295, 298300, 307, 308, 319, 221, 322
Corpotations Regulations

" " 1.0.08
Copy of financial statements and reports
It there Is insufficlent epace In any section of the form, you may photacopy the relevant page(s) and submit a8 part of this lodgement
Company/scheme details Company/scheme name
LM FlsT MORTEAGE [IOCORME EOND ]
ACNIARBN(ARSIYPIN/ABN
(O8] 2H% 28R ]
Lodgement details Who should ASIC contact If there Is 2 query about this form?
ASIC registered agent numbier (i applicabla)
An image of this form will be availzbie as ! i
part of the public register, Fimlorganisation e
LH INVESTMERT MANAGEMENT LIITER .~ ]
Contact name/position description Telephone number (g}éa‘ng business hca;ré) 5 - G N
G T Fisthey /[ CFO | (O7) 55 BYuTFeo 7]
Email aderess (optional) ' »19 v J‘F 7y ’:'3
[ N 5
Postal address \d‘ W"’é‘; : i o
(PO &OX H’5 AN |

Suburb/City State/Teriiory ostoorly 1 ig GO
[SORrEes PACADISE | [GLO _ !ﬁ% i

1 Reason for lodgement of statement and reports

Tick appropriate box. D A public company or a disclosing entity which is nat a registerad scheme or prescribed interest (A}
undertaking
@’ A repistered schame 2]
D Amendment of financial statements o directars’ report (company) {C}
D Amendment of financial statements or directors’ report {registered scheme) )
See Guide for definition of large and small [‘:] Alarge proprietary company that is nol a disciosing entity {H)
propriefary companies.
D A smal proprietary company that is controfied by & forelgn company for &l or part of the oeriod and H
where the company's profit o logs for the period is not covered by the stalements lodged with ASIC by a
registerad foreign company, company, registered scheme, or disclosing entity
D A small proprictary company that is requasted by ASIC to prepare and indge statements and reports {y
D A prestribed intetest undertaking that is a disclosing entity {onty for financial year ending 0407/2010 or (]
eartiar)
Dates on which financlal year beging Financlal year bagins Financial yaar ends
and onds oo T],Up] o (2ol eilel 0]
oM M N oY L UM MY Y
ASIC Form 308 1 Juty 2010 Page i of 4
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2 Details of large proprietary company

See Guide for definition of large and smal!
proprietary companies.

If the company is & large proprietary company that is not & disclosing antily, pisase compiate the {olowing infsrmation ps
at the end of the financial year for which the financia! statements ralate:

A Whatis the consolidated revenue of the large propristary company and the entities that it controls?

l ]

8 Whatis the valus of the consolidated gross assets of the targe propristary company and #he entities that & sontrals?

i |

¢ Howmany employees are emploved by the large proprietary company and the enlilies that it controls?

? |

D Row many members does the large propristary company have?

E |

3 Auditor's report

Were {he financial statements audited?

Yes A LEI'NG
Ll:a:lf ves, does the auditor's report {5308} for the financial ffno, is there a class order exemption current for audit
year contain a staiement of: refigf?

Reasons for the auditor not belng satisfied 2s to [:} D
the matters referred {o in 53077 Yes No

D Yes @ No

Detalts of the deficency, failure or shortooming
coneeming any matter referred toin 53077

D Yes EN«)

4 Details of current auditor or auditors

Registered schemes mus! advise ASIC

of the appointrent of an auditor on &
Eorm 5137 Appointment of scheme suditot
within 14 days of the appointment of the
auditor,

ASIC Form 388

Auditor registration number {for individual guditor or authorised sudd company)

Family nama Given name

‘ P ]
or

Company name

E2NST NG ]
ACNIABN

(752881 70L7HG ]

or
Firm name {if applicable}

1 July 2610 Page 2af 4
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4 Continued... Details of current auditor or auditors

A company may have two appointed
auditors, provided that both auditors were
appointed en the same date. Otherwise, an
appointed auditor must resign, be remaved
or elherwise ceased before a subssquent
appointment may he made,

Office, unit, fevel

[LOATEQ FUDOT PLACE ;

Strest number and Street name

[TEAGLE &1 |

Suburb/City StatefTerilory Postcode

[eUs G ANE |  LGLO I Laons

Country (if not Australtia}

f |

Date of appoiniment
CIC LT

P oM oMY

Auditor registration number (for individual auditor or authorisad audi company)

Family name Given name

o

Company name

ACNIABN

o
Firm name (if applicable}

| - |

Office, unit. fevel

Streel number and Street name
Suburb/City StatefTeitory Posicode

E b | |

Country (il oot Australia

| ]

5 Statements and reporis fo be attached to this form

ABIC Form 388

Finansial statements for the year {as required by s285(2) and atcounting standards)

+  Statement of comprehensive income, may also include a separate income statement for the year

+  Statement of financial position as at the end of the year

«  Statement of cash fiows for the year

= Statement of changes v equity

- I required by actounting standards — the consolidation statements of comprahensive incomedncome statement,
financial position, cash flows and changes in equity.

Notes to financial statements {see s295(3))

«  Disciosures required by the sequiations

*  Noles required by the atcouniing slandards

= Any other information necessary to give a true and fair view (see 5257}

The signed diretiars’ declaration about the statements and notes (see R785(4))

The signed directors” repert for the year, including the copy of the aurditor's independence dectaration (s238 1o 3004}
Signed auditar's report required under £308 and 5314

Loncise repod {if any) {see 3314)

1 July 2010 Page 3af §
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Signature I certify that the attached documents marked { ) a8 & frue copy of the originat repons required &0 be lndged under
$318 of the Corporations Act 2801,

See Guide for datails of signatory.
Neme

[ At I
Signature W .

Director

i
D Company secretary
Uate signed

[l

L B MoM Y]

Lodgement Send completed and signed forms to: For helz or mers information
Australian Securities and Investrments Comrmission, Toiephone 1300 300 630

PO Box 4000, Gippstand Mall Cendre VIC 3841, Email info.enauiries@ask.covay

. Web W, asic.00v,ay
Or lodge the form electronically by:
»  visiting the ASIC website www.asic.gov.au
*  using Standard Business Reporiing enabied software. Ses
www.sbr.gov.au for more details.

ASIC Form 208  Juty 2010 Page & of 4
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
ABN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2011
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report — 30 June 2011
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LM First Mortgage
Income Fund, present their report of the LM First Mortgage Income Fund {(“the Scheme”) for the vear ended
30 June 201 1. The directors’ report is not part of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The following persons held office as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the year or
since the end of the year and up to the date of this report:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr John O’Sullivan Appointed 27 November 2007
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in existing registered
mortgages and cash investments in Australia in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with
the investment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document.

Thete were no significant changes in the nature of the Scheme’s activities during the year,
The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.
SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted on 13 April 1999, The Responsible
Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the
Responsibie Entity since registration of the Scheme.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, ¢
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland,

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Resuits

During the year, the Scheme continued te invest in existing registered first mortgage loans secured by
property in Australia.

The Responsible Entity determined from 3 March 2009 that the Scheme would not accept any applications
for investment from any person who was not an existing member of the Scheme. The Scheme still accepts
applications for investment from any person who is an existing member of the Scheme by way of rellover of
investinent term, including deeraed applications as part of any reinvestment of distributions.

in order to protect the Scheme from the prevailing credit and liquidity constraints in the property and
financial markets, and the Scheme’s simultaneous obligation to repay Hs previous external financing facility,
the Responsible Entity ciosed the Scheme 1o new investments and suspended withdrawals, with the exception
of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for distributions and expenses, Feeder
funds are other registered managed investment schemes that have invested directly in the LM First Morigage
fncome Fund.
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REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)

The resultant tightness in credit markets following the global financial crisis (“GFC™) continues to influence
timing in relation to the expected realisation of first mortgage assets due to borrower difficuities in obtaining
finance and the accompanied slowdown in sales of property assets. Therefore the manager has deterinined
that the Scheme remains closed to new investor applications and investor redemptions with the exception of
approved hardship withdrawals.

On | July 2010, the directors were able to successfully refinance the Scheme’s previous facifity with the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia. This was the first important milestone in realising the ultimate strategy
for the Scheme.

The new financing facility with Deutsche Bank, allows the realisation of assets in a more timely and
composed manner and the repayment of the facility is linked to the sales of assels rather than a fixed monthty
repayment amount. In addition to this, the directors have renegotiated, in June 2011, a more favourable
repayment schedule in order to maximise the available cash in the Scheme, which will greatly assist the
Scheme achigve its four step action ptan which is detailed below,

The strategy for the Scheme over the course of the GFC was to focus on the preservation of the unit price,

Following feedback from investors and advisers, during the year, the Responsible Entity announced a revised
liquidity stratepy to accelerate the rates of sales of identified assets. This was in order to commence the four

slep action plan below:

1. Catch up or payments of declared distributions and other Scheme expenses;
2. Announce a managed redemptions plan;

3. Re-lending into the current market in order 1o enhance returns; and

4. Re-open the Scheme to new investors.

As mentioned above, the Responsible Entity announced a liquidity strategy that identified certain compieted
assets which were to be actively marketed and sold. The cash proceeds from the sales campaign are to be
applied to the four step action plan. Other specific assets were sefected to remain in the Scheme as in the
opinion of the directors they represent opportunities for growth over the medium to longer term. Subsequent
to balance date, the Scheme has commenced step one and has now made two payments towards the catch-up
program relating to distributions accrued for February and March 2010,

The Australian property market has performed well in comparison to other developed countries during the
course of the GFC (in particular the affordable residential sectors), however some sectors of the market
remain affected by the continued lack of credit in the marketplace, hence seeing a slowness continue in the
rate of sales and some discounting apply in order for property sellers to realise cash.

During the course of the accelerated sales and marketing campaign, the manager accepted sales prices which
have resulted in the fluctuation of the unit price. After assessment of this market evidence, the directors are
of the opinion that some additional provisions were required in the accounts in arder to reficet these values,

Importantly, these additional provisions do not represent actual bad debts which have been writien off but the
Responsibie Entity’s expectation as to the market value of the underlying securities held by the Scheme.
inciuded within this additiona! provision is actual debts written off during the year of $13.25 million {3.10%
of the ioan balance at 30 June 2011). The market will ultimately determine the value of the extent of the
provision required to be utilised once the properties have been sold and settled. The assets which have been
retained by the Scheme may provide outperformance over the medium to fonger term (particularly those i
the retirement sector} and in fact see the reversal of some of these provisions.

4
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REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS (Continued)

The unit price of the Scheme as at 16 September 2011 is 80 cents (2010 §1 .00) due to a total provision
raised for realised and unrealised losses of 20 cents per unit,

It should be noted that as at the date of this report only 5 cents of the total 20 cents has been realised, the
additional provision of 15 cents has been provided and considers the Responsible Entity’s expectation as to
the current market value of the securities held by the Scheme. Should market conditions improve this

. edditional provision may not be fully utilised by the Scheme.

The manager has significant resources in-house dedicated to the overall asset realisation programme and each
individual first mortgage asset has a managed exit strategy. All non-construction assets are currently
available for sale and the manager expects to continue to realise proceeds from these assets in an orderly
fashior over the coming twelve months and beyond.

The Directors believe that this should allow, over time, the Scheme to continue its principai activity of
investing in new registered first mortgages and cash within the Australian property market and provide
investors with rates of retum with the appropriate risk return margin over cash with a stable unit price.

The change in net assets attributable to the unitholders of the Scheme is presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Net loss attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 201} was
$77,418,896 (2010: profit of $23,507,438).

Distributions to unitholders declared during the year totalled $14,295,925 (2010: $24,770,380).

Total assets Vunder management were $454,724,79¢ as at 30 June 201] (2010: $575,066,439). Investor funds
under management decreased during the year by $104,824.211 (2010: decreased by $7,328,655). Funds
under management invested by refated managed investment schemes in LM FMIF decreased by 513,222 693
(2010: decreased by $6,929,699) to $210,378,005 (2010: $£223,613,698).

The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the results of its operations, was as foliows:

30 June 2011 30 June 2018
: $ $
Net operating income/(loss) before distributions (77,418,896) 23,507,438
Financing costs: Disiributions to unitholders (14,295,925) (24,770,380)
(Increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders 91,714,821 1,262,942
Met profit/{loss) - -
UNITHOLDER FUNDS

There were 476,355,743 units on issue at 30 June 2011 (2010: 487,146,613}, During the year 12,180,254 of
units were issued by the Scheme (2010: 20,893,238) and 24,218,932 of units were withdrawn (2010:
26,070,292,

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2011, the Scheme held assets to z total value of $454,724,769 (2010: $575,066,439). The basis
for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements,

5
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FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
The following fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of

Scheme property during the financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on
behalf of the Responsibie Entity:

2611 2010
o $ $
* Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Ld 10,997,188 8,995,455
= Expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity and its associated entities
which are reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s 791,164 872,091
Constitution, including administration and cusiodian fees
e Loar management fees paid to the Responsible Entity for ioan
management and receivership services provided by the Responsible
Entity on behalf of the Scheme in replacement of appointing external 5,381,516 -

receivers. These fees are charged directly to the borrower to facHitate
future possible recovery.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

in the opinion of the directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme that
occurred during the financial year under review that are not otherwise disclosed in this report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 18 of the financial report there has been no matter or circumstance
that has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected, or may affect, the Scheme’s
operations in future financial years, the results of those operations of the Scheme’s state of affairs in future

YEars.
LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

Further information on likely developments in the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those
operations has not been included in this report because the Responsible Entity believes it would likely result

in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme,
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations under
& law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no known significant breaches of any
other environmenial requirements applicable to the Scheme.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AM) OFFICERS

No insurance premiums are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided fo
either the officers of LM Investment Management Limited or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the
officers of LM Investment Management Limited act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the
Law, the officers remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on
bekalf of the Scheme, The auditors of the Scheme are in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 is set out on page &.

Signed in accordance with a resofution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited.

o

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

16 September 2011
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Auditor's independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment
Management lLimited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage
Income Fund

in relation to our audit of the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund, for the financial year
ended 3C June 2011, to the best of my knowiedge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional

canduct.

Emt&: oh \Tc‘-unol

Ernst & Young

T ™ i SECAY N

Paula McLuskie
Partner

Brisbane

16 September 2011

@?

Liability lirmited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 Jure 204 1

Income

Interest revenue — mortgage loans

Interest revenue — cash assets

Realised foreign exchange gain on investor funds
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on investor funds
Unrealised foreign exchange gain on foreign
exchanpge contracts

Total revenue and other income

Expenses

Management fees

Finance costs

Custodian fees

Advisar commissions

Impairment losses on morigage oans

Unrealised foreign exchange losses an investor fund
Reatised loss on foreign exchange contracts

Legal fees

Other expenses

Fotal expenses excluding disiributions to unitholders
Net profit/{loss) before distribetions to unitholders
Distributions paid/payabie to unitholders

Ner prafit/floss) after distributions to unitholders

Other comprehensive income

Changes in net assets attributable o unitholiders

Income tax expense

Changes in net assets atiributable to unitholders
after income tax expense

Notes

1
4{r)

8(d)

4(b)

3(a)

3¢ June 201} 30 June 2010
s $

35,604,341 54,533,895
162,848 100,695
37,375 1,056,978
1,134,069 -
16,240 17,451
36,954,873 55,709,019
10,997,188 9,131,818
14,072 789 12,252,878
112,324 88,163
2,090,475 2,133,181
84,873,703 6,582,816
- 25,725
1,338,500 1,180,181
407,260 58,174
481,530 748,645
114,373,769 32,201,581
(77,418,896) 23,507,438
(14,295,925} (24,770,380)

(91,714,8213

(1,262,942)

(91,714,821)

(1,262,942)

(91,714,821)

(1,262,942)
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Prepayments

Investments

Fair value of forward exchange contracts
Loans and receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Distributions pavable

As at 30 June 2011

Total liabilitzes excluding net assets atéributable to

unitholders

NET ASSETS
Represented by:

Net assets attributable to unitholders
{calculated in accordance with IFRS)

Note

13(a)
12
N

10
Ma)

30 June 2011 30 Jurne 2010
$ b

18,475,447 1,976,709
1,753,449 1,669,826
8,656,894 8,401,148

- !

33,691 17,451
425805318 563,001,304
454,724,799 575,066,439
3,702,723 2,618,154
62,399,788 8,014,217
6,434,965 4,422,534
72,537.476 88.054,905
382,187,323 487,011,534
382,187,323 487,011,534
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

For the year ended 30 June 2011

TOTAL

Opening balance

Units tssued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units isswed on reinvestment of distributions

Transfers 1o and from the statement of comprehensive income

Foreign exchange {gain)/ioss on investor funds

Closing Balance

2011 2019
$ $
487,011,534 494,475,268
81,549 17,525,140
(24,184,932) (26,070,292)
12,098,705 3,368,098
(91,714,821} (1,262,942)
(1,104,712) (1,023,738)
382,187,323 487,011,534
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 38 June 2011

Cash fiows from operating activities
Inierest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Other operating expenses

Other income received

GST and withholding tax (paid)/received
Finance costs paid

Net cash inflow/{outfiow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for secured mortgage loans
Receipts from settled morigage loans

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from new facility

Repayment of new facility

Cash paid on realisation of foreign exchange contracts
Receipts from the issue of units

Distributions paid

Payment for redemption of units

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing aciivities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at begitning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

13

Notes

13(b)

13¢a)

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

$ $

5,006,959 8,508,222

- (12,006.000)

{614,903) (2,474,7164)

- 2,124,736

- (2,698,179)

{15,144,103) (11,619,561)

(16,752,049; (§7,559,546)

(15,897.4723 {i3,461,041)

62,313,149 114,763,275

46,413,677 90,302,234

(81,014,211 (51,585,783)

$9.100,000 -

(26,700,212) -

- (1,180,181

70,600 3,606,995

- {5,291,540)

{620,461) {26,070,292)

(19,164,890) (80,920,801)

16,498,738 821,887

1,976,709 1,154,822

18,475,447 1,976,705
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EM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 201 I
CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme”) for the year ended 30 June 2011
was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the direciors of the Responsible Entity on 16
September 201 1.

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme, constituted on 13 April 1999, The Scheme will
terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earfier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme
Constitution (as amended).

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is focated at Level 4, 9 Beach
Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensiand.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors® Report.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated in
the following text.

8) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Scheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes applicable
Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australiag Accounting Standards
Board.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets and financial Habilities held at fair value through profit or ioss, that have been measured at fair
value.

The statement of financial position presents assets and liabilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does
not distinguish between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASE 107 — Presentation of
Financial Statements. All balances are expected to be recovered or settied within twelve months, except
for loans and receivables and net assets attributable to unitholders. The amount expected to be recovered
or settled within twelve months i relation to the balances cannot be reliably determined,

The financial report is presented in Austraiian Dollars ($).
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards as

issued by the Ausiralian Accounting Standards Board and Internationa! Fipancial Reporting Standards as
issued by the international Accounting Standards Board.
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LM FIRST MORTCAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
a) Basis of accounting (Continued)
Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis the Scheme is a going concern. During the year,
Responsible Entity entered into a facility with an external financier on behalf of the Scheme that provides
a facility of $90 miliion for two years with an option to extend for an additional year, of which $63
million was drawn on 30 June 2011.

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to make minimum repayments in priority to any redemptions,
except for hardship provisions and feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund expenses. In
addition, where the Scheme realises assets or receives cash in seitlernent of secured loans it must repay to
the external financier an agreed amount that varies based on each secured loan,

During the year, the dircctors of the Responsible Entity agreed an amendment to the facility that provides
for §7.5 million of repayments from the settlement of secured foans made in June 2011 to be available 1o
complete developinent projects. As at the date of this report $7.5 million of these funds remain available
to the Scheme. See note 10 for details of the facility.
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" As a result of disruptions following the global financial crisis, there is significant volatility in the

E financial and property markets, and there has been uncertainty as to the Scheme’s ability 1o access
funding. This resuited in the Responsible Entity closing the Scheme in 2009 to new investors and

] suspending withdrawals, wilh the exception of those withdrawals approved under hardship provisions
and feeder fund payments for distributions and expenses allowed under the facifity agreement, From |

E January 2011 distributions were also suspended.

|

&

E

| |

[

=

.

[

B

E

B

¥

=

=

[ ]

Since the year end the Scheme has commenced paying outstanding distributions and the Responsible
Entity is considering options for a managed redemption pian for those investors with a redemption
request flodged. The directors must also ensure that they protect those investors whe wish to remain
invested in the Schieme. The payment of redemptions is dependent on the ability of the Scheme to realise
its loans and receivabies, the timing of which in the current market remains uncertain, This uncertainty
may impact the timing of payment of redemption requests from unitholders,

The directors believe the Scheme will be abis to meat its obligations to unithoiders and that the Scheme
will be able to realise its loans and receivables in the normal course of business as a going concern at the
amounts stated. On this basis the directors believe the Scheme is 4 going concern and hence the financial
report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts or {o the amounts and classification of iabilities that might be necessary should the Scheme not
continue as a going concern,
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 201
Z. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b) New accounting standards and taterpretations

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are
not yet effective have not been adopted by the Scheme for the annual reporting period ended 30 June
2011. The impact of these standards and interpretations has been assessed and 1o the extent applicable to
the Scheme are discussed below, Standards and Interpretations that are not expected to have a material
impact on the Scheme have not been included,

AASRB 9 Financial Instruments and related amendment AASE 2009.11

AASB 9 applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2013 and will therefore
apply to the Scheme from 1 July 2013, The Scheme does not intend to early adopt AASR 9 as
permitted by the standard, and the actual impact on initial application will depend on certain elections
as disclosed below.

AASB 9 requires all financial instruments to be measured at fair value unless the criteria for amortised
cost are met. The application of the standard is not expected to change the measurement basis of any of
the Scheme’s current financial instruments, however, AASB 9 allows the Scheme to elect to present
gains and losses on equity securities through other comprehensive income, which may impact the
presentation of these gains and losses, The impact of the standard may also change if the nature of the
Scheme’s activities or investiments changes prior to initial application.

¢) Sigrificant accounting judgements, estimates and assum ptions
(i} Sipuificant accounting judgements
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart

from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. No judgements have been determined to be individuatly significant.

(i) Significant eccounting estimates and asswmptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a stgnificant risk of causing
a material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual
reporting period are:

a.  Allowance for impairment loss on foans and receivabies
The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an

estimation of the valuc of future cash flows through a “on completion” valuation or the
property based on an “as is"” valuation.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 201§
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

¢} Sipnificant accounting judrements, estimates snd assumptions (continued)

b Fair valace of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabiiities recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety
of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models, The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.

The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as gredit risk (both
own and counterparty’s), correlation and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. The models are calibrated
reguiarly and tested for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in
the samc instrument (without modification or repackaging) or based on any available
observable market data.

d} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits heid at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. For the purposes
of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

e} BDistribution inceme

Distribution income is recognised when the unitholders’ right to receive the payment is established.

3] Interest incame

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest rate method, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected fife of the financial
instrumment to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

£} Default management fees

tncome from default management fees is recognised in line with the executed agreement with the
borrower when an event of default eccurs,

[} Changes in the fair value of investmenis

Gains or losses on investments held for trading are calculated as the difference between the fair value at
sale, or at year end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point. This includes both reatised and
unrealised gains and ogses.

i} Fees, commissions and other expenses
Except where included in the effective interest caiculation {for financial instruments carried at

amartised cost), fees and commissions are recognised on an accrual basis. Audit and compliance fees
are included with ‘other expenses’ and are recorded on an accrual basis.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 201 |

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Finance costs

Interest an borrowings is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period to which it
refates. Issue costs associated with borrowings are capitalised and amortised over the term of the
borrowing to which they refate using the effective interest methad.

k)

Financis? instroments

Financial instruments in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurenent are
classified as either financial assets and financial Habilities at fair value through profit or foss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity invesiments, available-for-sale investments or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The Scheme
determines the classification of its financia! assets at initial recognition,

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the
Scheme commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established gencrally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

i} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities through praofit and loss

Financial assets held for trading included forward exchange contracts. These assets are acquired
principaltly for the purpose of mitigating the risk of movements in the value of non-Australian Dollar
investar funds and facilitating forecasting of future cash flows. During the period, all derivatives are
classified as held for trading. Derivative financial instruments entered into by the Scheme do not
meet the hedye accounting criteria as defined by AASB139. Conscquently, hedge accounting is not
appited by the Scheme in the 2011 financial year,

i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinabie payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair vajue
including transaction costs directly attributable to the financial asset. After initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivabies are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the ameortisation process.

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting pericd. An atlowance is made
for credit losses when there is objective evidence that the Scheme will not be able to collect the loans
and receivables. Impairment losses are written off when identified. Losses expected as a result of
future events are not recognised. if a provision for impainment has been recognised in relation to a
loan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has
previously been recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an expense in the statement of
comprehensive income.,

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Committee. A provision is made of logns in arrears where the coliectability of the debts is
considered doubtful by estimation of expected lesses in relation 1o loan portfolios where specific
identification is impracticable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
k) Financial Instruments (Continued)
i) Loans and receivables (Continued)

The components of impaired assets are as follows:
“Loans in arrears” are foans and advances for which there is reasonabie doubt that the Scheme will be
able to coliect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement,

“Assets acquired through the enforcement of security™ are assets acquired in full or partial settiement
of a loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrangements.

Where possible, the Fund seeks to restructure loans to have loans fulty performing, however the
fund will take possession of the coliateral where necessary, The rencgotiation may involve
extending payment terms and arrangement of new loan conditions. Onee the terms have boen
renegotiated any impairment is measured the same way as performing loans. The renepotiated
loans continuse to be assessed individually and collectively for impairment,

“Restructured loans™ arise when the borrower is granted a concession due fo continuing difficulties in
meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparable to the revised terms. These loans are
removed from “restructure loans” afler a period of 12 months of performance against loan revised
terms and conditions. Loans with revised terns are included in ‘loans in arrcars’ when impairment
provisions are required,

When the Responsible Entity determines interest is not recoverable on certain impaired loans, the
interest is suspended and not brought into income. Should the Responsible Entity’s analysis of the
collectability subsequently change the interest will be brought into income at the time it is determined
to be collectible,

§; Adviser Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisors and are calculated as 2
percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related
units are redeemed.

m) Payabies

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
Scheme prior to the end of the financia) year that are unpaid and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged
to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
statement of financial position as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income s at 30
June 2011 under the Scheme’s Constitution.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continned)
n) lncrease/decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributable income is transferred directly to net assets attributable 1o unitholders and may consist
of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, acerued income not yet assessable, expenses
accrued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred income
previously taken directly to net assets attributable to unitholders) and accrued income not yet assessabie
will be included in the determination of distributable income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is also transferred directly to net assets atiributable to
unitholders,

o) Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its distributable income to

unitholders. Distributions are payable monthly, Such distributions are determined by reference to the net

taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income ingludes capital gains arising from the disposal of

investments. Unrealised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to

net assets atiributable to unitholders and are not assessable and distributable unti] realised, Capital losses ,
are not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital gains. ;

)] Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incurred on the costs of various services provided to the Responsible Entity by third parties
such as audit fees, custodial services and investment management fees have been passed onto the |
Scheme. The Scheme qualifies for Reduced input Tax Credits {RITC’s} at a rate of 75%. |

Hence mvestment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO). Accounts payable are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATOQ is included in receivable in the statement of financial position, Cash flows relating to GST are
included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow.

q} Appiications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme.
Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the cancellation of units redeemed occurs. Unit
redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of
units on issue,

Applications received in foreign currency denominations are initially recorded in the functional currency
by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction, Foreign currency denominated
unitholder funds are transtated into the Schemes functional currency at balance date, using the spot rate
prevailing at that date. Gains and losses arising from foreign exchange translation are recorded in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise,
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Netes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2011
% SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cenfinued)
) Taxation

Under current legistation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or rejnvestment (i.e. unitholders are presently
entitled to the income of the Scheme).

The price of a unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may include a share of
unreatised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital
gains tax will be distritnfed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains tax. Realised capital losses
are pot distributed to unitholders but are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capita}
gamns. If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the excess is distributed to unitholders.

s) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, befng the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loang
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. \
Atmnortised cost is calcufated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on
settlement.

£ Capital management

The Responsible Entity manages the Scheme’s net assets attributable to unithoiders as capital, not
withstanding net assets attributable to unitholders is classified as a Bability. The amount of net assets
attributabie to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Scheme is subject to daily
applications and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders.

The Responsible Entity monitors the level of daily applications and redemptions relative to the liguid
assets in the Scheme.

The Scheme is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

) Berivative financial instruments
The Scheme uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge #ts risks
associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Derivatives are recognised at fair vaiue on the date on
witich a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re~-measured af their fair value. All

derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair vaiue is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from chanpes in the fair value of derivatives, except for those that qualify as
cash flow hedges, are taken directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is caleulated by reference to valuations provided by the
financial institutions with which the forward exchange contracts are heid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
v} Foreign currency transiations

The Scheme’s transactions in foreign currencies comprise applications and withdrawals of foreign
currency unitholder funds and payment of distributions. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recordedt in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liability denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and exchange rate gains and losses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

w) Betermination of Fair Valpe

Fair value is the amount for which an asset coutd be exchanged, or & liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s fength transaction.

The fair vaiue for financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their
quoted price or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs,

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques inciude: using recent anm’s iength market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making as much use of availabie and i
supportable market data as possible.

Refer to Note 16 to the financial statements for the methods and assumptions applied in determining fair
value for each class of financial instrument.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

3. INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

a)} [Hstributions te unitholders

2811 2010
§ §
Distributions paid/reinvested 7,860,960 20.347.846
Distributions payable : 6,434,965 4,422,534

14,295 925 24,770,380

b) Distributions paid and payable

Class A 5,304,007 9,869,689
Class B £,836,041 14,416,030
ClassC - 135,877 484,661

14,295 925 24,770,380

As at 30 June 2011, $6,289,306 (2010: $2,127,69 1) of distributions payable related to distributions that
were requested to be paid under the Scheme’s Constitution prior to 30 June 2011, Distributions have
been suspended from 1 January 2011. Subsequent to balance date, $1,039,826 of distributions have
been paid relating to February and March 2010, ‘

4. EXPENSES
2011 2010
$ 3
a} Finance costs
interest on bank loans 13,519,294 0,965,951
Facility fees 553,495 2,286,887
14,072,789 12,252,878
b) Other expenses
Auditor’s remuneration 415,880 401,984
Other expenses 65,650 347945
481,535 749,929
5 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
2011 2010
b b
Audit and review of the financial reports 388,480 370,680
Other regulatory audit services 27,400 31,304
| 415,880 401,984

These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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6.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 201]

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Movements in the net assets attributable to unithoiders during the year were a3 follows:

Net assets attributabie to unitholders

Class A

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issugd upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance

Class B

Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestinent of distributions
Closing Balance

Class C

Opening balance

Unils issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss on investor funds
Closing Balance

Movement in changes net assets atéributable 10 unithoiders

‘Total assets atiribugable to unitholders

Class A consists of unitholders who are entitled (o receive the declared distribution rate. There are a
number of subciasses attached 1o class A. These consist of the foltowing products with varying terms:

e Flexi Account investment option;
e Fixed Term investment option; and

e LM Savings Plan investment option.

Class B3 consists of related Scheme unitholders. The distribution rate will be determined by the Funds
Committee which is appointed by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the diseretion to
watve the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for

this class of unit holders.

24

2011
5

253,713,032

2610
5

252,479,887

11,549 660,314
{547,888) (2.489,991)
1,656,038 3,062,822

254,832,73) 753,713,032
223,613,698 230,543,397
70,000 16,282,761
(23,610,149) (23,212,460
10,317,456 -
210,391,005 223,613,698
10,641,784 11,146,022

- 582,065

(26,895) (367,841)
125,211 305,276
(1,104,712) (1,023,738)
9.635,388 10,641,784
(92,671,801 (956,980}
382,187,323 487,011,534
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
6. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS {Continued)

Ctass C consist of unitholders who have invested in foreign currencies and are entitled to receive the
declared distribution rate. The class C product is Non-Australian Doliar Currency Hedged Fixed Term
investment Option. This consists of various terms and currency products,

All unitholders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per unit at unitholders’ meetings. In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank
after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation,

Status of investment in fund

During the 2009 year, the Responsible Entity closed the Scheme to new investors and suspended
withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund payments
for distributions and expentses. Feeder funds are other registered managed investment schemes that have
invested directly in the LM First Morigage Income Fund. Redemptions are generally to be paid within
365 days of the investment maturity term, however, redemptions have been suspended, per the
constitution, as the Responsible Entity considers the suspension of withdrawals to be in the best interest
of the members of the Scheme.

At 30 June 2011, 5291,228,754 (201 0: $308,295,443) of redemptions had been requested by unitholders
but not yet paid. Of the total requested redemptions $870,215 (2010 $448,589) related fo requests
occurring within thirty days of year end. $143.311 487 {2010: §! 53,007,642) had been requested inore
thar 30 days prior to year end, Redemptions also rank behind repayment of external financing facilitics
as detailed in Note 2(a). Of the above, $147,917,267 {2010; $154,839,212) of redemptions had been
requested by unitholders of the feeder funds,

From 1 January 2011, the decision was made to suspend distributions of the Scheme and its feeder funds.

Since year end, $1,039,826 of distribution has been paid, relating to distributions accrued for February
and March 2010

7. INVESTMENTS 2011 2008

Investment in subsidiary - !

The Scheme owned 100% of the issued share capital of $1 of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited. This
company was wound up during the period.
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8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Secured mortgage loans

Secured mortgage loans - 2™ priority

Gther unsecured loans — reiated party

Provision fer impairment

Net ivans and advances

Secured mortgage loans of $11,365,047 (2010: $9,205.3 79) have second priority over the security held.
The first priority is held by another party that is entitied to $5,000,000 (2010: $5,000,000) of the security.

3011 2016
$ $

490,865,724 556,766,225

11,365,047 9,205,379

- 1,829,700

(76,425 453) (4,800,000)

425,805,318 563,001,304

&} Aggregate amounts receivable from related parties

2011 2010
3 b
Directors and director-related entities - secured 7,849,604 7,849,604
Related managed investment schemes — secured 2,243,485 31,731,087
Related managed investment schemes — unsecured - 1,828,700
16,093,089 41,410,391
b)  Maturity analysis - Secured Morigage Loans
2011 2810
$ 3

Less than 3 months

3-6 months

6-12 months

12-18 months
i8-24 months
24-36 months

282,809,146 474,335,296

- 80,149,902

7,849,604 1,486,406
11,365,047 -

302,023,797 565,971,604

The above maturity analysis is the contractual maturity of secured non-construction loans, Secured

construction loans will be realised through cash flows which in years one and two will be reinvested to
meet construction costs, and which are expected to realise a net cash inflow in three to five vears. The

carrying value of these loans at 30 June 2011 was $200,207,424.
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Nates to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
8. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)
e} Concentration of risk
There are four counterparties with which the Scheme’s credit exposure exceeds 0% of the net assets
attributable to unitholders as at 30 June 201 1. The total value of loans, before taking into account
coltateral or other credit enhancements, is $190,025,272 (2010: $178,910,561).
For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and geographical location refer to Note 15.

d) Provisions for impairment

The impairment joss expense relating to foans and receivables comprises:

201} 2010
5 3

Specific provision

Opening balance 4,800,000 2,667,000
Impatrment losses provided for during the year 84,360,301 3,560,000
impairment losses realised during the year (12,734,848) (1,427,000}
Closing balance . 76,425,453 4. 800,000
Collective provision

Opening balance - -
Impairment losses provided for during the year - -
Closing balance 3 -
Total Provision for impairment 76,425,453 4,800,060

Changes to operating profit/(loss) before tax for
impairment losses on loans and receivables comprises:
Specific provision 71,625,453 2,133,000
Collective provision - -

Impairment fosses recognised directly in Statement of
Comprehensive Income 13,248 250 4,449,816

84,873,703 0,582,816
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
& LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Continued)
d) Provisions for impairment (Continued)

The collective provision for impairment is calculated by placing loans into poals with similar risk
characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment,

2011 2010
L) §

Movement in Default loans

Giross default loans opening balance 332,894,902 331,473,714
New and increased default Joans 170,613,998 36,849,820
Balances written off (13,248,250) (1,333.416)
Returned to performing or repaid {60,827 696) (37,005 216)
Ciross default loans closing balance 425,432,954 332,894,902
Specific provision (76,425,453) (3,493,000)
Net default Joans 353,007,501 326,401 902

At 30 June 2011, the balance of loans that were past due but not impaired was 157,695,871 (2010:
$248,106,127). As per the Scheme’s poficy, loans are past due once they exceed 90 days overdue,

AL 30 June 2011, $323,137,094 of loans were individually impaired, with a total impairment loss of
$76,425,453.

Loans are secured by land, development property or completed construction property. The fair vaiue of
security over loans that are past due but not impaired at 30 June 201 | was $! 70,064,593 (2010:
$326,365,696).

interest on arrears loans is suspended and not brought to account when the Responsible Entity considered
that the amounts are ot ultimately recoverable from the saie proceeds of the property. The amount of
suspended interest at 30 June 2011 totalled $87,077,591 (2010: $20,031,170).

9. PAYABLES 2051 2010
3 3
Foreign currency awaiting investment - 195
Cther payailes 3,762,723 2,617,959
3,702,723 2,618,154

28

786



Page 32 of 56 Docld: 020500688 Org No:089 343 288

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

10. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2011 2010
$ k)
Secured bank loan 62,399,788 81,014,217

On 1 July 2010, the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM Investiment Management
Limited, entered into a new facility with another externa) financier.

The existing bank agreement provides a $90 miliion facility for two years with an option to extend for an
additional year with intetest at 15% per annum increasing to 18% if the loan term is extended. In the
event that the repayment is not made in accordance with the repayment plan mentioned below, the
interest rate payable is increased to BBSY +5.0%.

The Scheme is also reguired to hold a minimum cash balance of $6 million under this facility,

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to make minjmum repayiments as detailed below. These
minimum repayments must be made in priority to any redemptions, except for hardship provisions and
feeder fund payments for investor distributions and fund expenses,

Minimum repayment
3t December 2011 11,000,000
30 June 2012 $13,500,000 if facility extended or any remaining balance

in addition, where the Scheme realises assets or receives cash in settlement of secured loans it must repay
to the externai financier an agreed amount that varies based on each secured foan.

Where the Scheme has made repayments in excess of the minimum repayments required, the facifity
allows the Scheme to redraw funds to compiete agreed development projects or establish new loans
subject to prior approval from the external financier.

The facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the Scheme, providing Deutsche
Bank, as secured lender with first priority over the assets of the Scheme,

As at the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with all loan covenants in the facifity
agreement and the current bafance of the facility at the dats of this report is $59,791,622. The Scheme's
fimancing facilities contain various financial covenants. During the financial period certain of those
covenants (including the minimum cash balance) were breached. The Scheme’s bank provided the
Scheme with temporary waivers of those covenants o ensure that there was no event of default triggered
under the facilities. However, from 1 February 2011 to 3 May 2011 the Scheme paid penalty interest at
18%. Since 4 May 2011, the Scheme has been paying interest at 15% (refer to Note 2),
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i1. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on
behalf of the Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible
Entity. LM Administration Pty Limited is paid a management fec directly from the Scheme.

The Scheme’s arrangement in relation to management fees is such that LM Investment Managemer
Limited is required to be paid up to $1 million per month for administration and fund management
services, with any monthly management fee in excess of $1 milkion to be paid to LM Admisnistration Pty
Limited for administeation services provided on behalf of LM Investment Management Limited.

Custodian

The Custodian of the Scheme is LM Investment Management Limited.

Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 14,

Direciors' remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of
remuneration paid by the Respeonsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity
in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately identified in Note 14,

Direciors’ holdings of unity

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end are set
out below,

201t 2010
$ $
- LM Investment Management Limited - .
- Directors and director related entities - -
- Other Associates of LM Investment Management
Limited 167,378,018 223,613,698

fervesting activifies

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application
and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes. At 30 June 201}
the Scheme had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its

affiliates (2010: nil}.
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il RELATED PARTIES (Confinued)

Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities,
may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals are on the same terms and
conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors, Apart from the details disclosed in this note,
no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contracts involving directors® interests subsisting at year-end. All
transaction was approved on an arm'’s length basis and is on normal terms and conditions.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behaif of the Responsible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Pty
Limited is paid a management fee for these services directly from Scheme assets. The Scheme's
arrangement in relation to management fees is such that LM Investment Management Limited is required
to be paid up to $1 million per month for administration and fund management services, with any
monthly management fee in excess of $1 mitlion to be paid to LM Administration Pty Limited for
administration services provided on behalf of LM Investment Management Limited.

During the year, management fees of $10,997,188 (2010: $9,131,8} 8} were paid or payable by the
Scheme. Of these fees, $10,997,188 (2010: $$9,131,818) was paid or payable to LM Administration Pty
Limited.

During the year, loan origination fees received from borrowers within the Scheme was nil (2010:

$2,769,913). These fees are charged when new borrowings are undertaken or existing borrowings are
rolied over to non-defauit conditions,

3t
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i1, RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Other transactions with the Scheme (Continued)

On 28 August 2008, it was resolved by the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity, to transfer three
mortgage loans to the value of $33,513,345 and the related first mortgage security to a related scheme,
LM Managed Performance Fund (‘LM MPF’). There is a fixed charge over these two specific secured
properties plus a floating charge over the remaining assets of LM MPF to provide security to the Scheme
in the event of default by the LM MPF. This loan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest bearing at
7%, with the interest being capitalised. On 30 May 2011, this receivable was successfully repaid in full
by LM MPF. :

The Scheme has advanced funds to LM MPF to finance a joint venture entered into with a borrower of
the Scheme. At 30 June 2011, the baiance of the joan LM MPF Scheme was fully paid (2010:
$9,563,238), which is secured by first mortgape of the assets of the unrelated borrower and bya
guaraniee from the LM MPF. This loan had been subject to the normal credit approval review
procedures of the Scheme and was a fully serviced loan with interest being paid monthly.

The LM MPF has second mortgages on loans that are first mortgages of the Scheme totalling
$46,158,276 (2010: $53,631,982). LM MPF may on occasion pay development and construction costs
on those related loans. As part of its role as second mortgagee, LM MPF will fund interest payments
from time io time within approved loan facility limits. During the 30 June 20} 1 year, interest payments
totalling $915,954 (2010: $413,722) were paid by LM MPF on behalf of borrowers.

At 30 Jure 2008, management assigned a $5,100,000 receivable within the Scheme from LM Investment
Management Limited to LM MPF. The loan accrued interest at 10% per anaum and was repaid in full on

31 August 20610,

2623 2010
$ 3
Responsible Entity remuneration received or due and
receivable -
s Management fees for the yvear paid or payable 10,997,188 9.131.818

directly from LM Administration Pty Limited

¢ Expenses including administration expenses
incurred by the Responsible Entity and its associated
entities, which are reimbursed in accordance with 791,164 879,091
the provisions of the Constitution.

¢ Loan managemen! fees paid to the Responsible
Entity for loan management and controllership
services provided by the Responsible Entity on $381.516
behalf of the Scheme in replacement of appointing T
external receivers. These fees are charged directly to
the borrowers to facilitate possible future recovery.

Custodian’s remuneration

« Custodian’s fees paid by the Scheme 112,324 88,163

32
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RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Oiher transactions with the Scireme (Continued)

Balance with related parties 2011 2016

&

&

®

Aggregate amounts receivabie from related parties by
the Scheme were as follows:

LM Adm:mstratmn Pty l.,:mlted {management fees 8,200,000 8.200,000
prepaid by the Scheme)/i)

2;stral:an International Investments Pty Limited 7,849 604 7,849,604
LM Managed Performance Fund (i) - 31,357,590

Aggregate amounts payable to related parties from the
Scheme were as follows:

®

i

i},

Fi

John O Sullivan (iv) 162,609 66,984

These amounts are included in prepayments of $8,260,000 at 30 june 2011 (2010 $8,200,000). No
amounts are payable to related parties by the Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments
during the year was $8,200,000 (2010: $6,183,333) which was non-interest bearing. Interest
foregone on the above amount if calculated at the weighted average cash rate of 4.02% {2010 3.57%)
would have been $329,640 (2010: $220,745), 1f this revenue had been collected, the sum foregone
would have been paid to LM Administration Pty Limited as management fees or reduction i chanpe
i net assets attributable to unitholders during the year,

This prepaid management fee will be recovered through LM Administration Pty Limited’s
Agreement to offset future payable management fees or through guarantee from a director, Peter
Charies Drake.

Peter Charfes Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian International Investment Services Py
Limited which is a joint borrower in a secured Joan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June
2011 for §7,849,604 (2010: $7,849,604). This transaction was approved on an arm's iength basis and
is on normal terms and conditions.

During August 2008, three mortgage loans were assigned from the Scheme to LM Managed
Performance Fund (‘LM MPF’) as LM MPF’s mandate was more appropriate to take over the future
deveiopment on behalf of the original borrowers. This assignment was done on commercial terms
and conditions on an arm’s length basis. This loan between the Scheme and LM MPF is interest
bearing at 7%. The amount of interest being charged on the loan during the period was $1,030,712.

LM MFF has successfully settfed the full value of these loans as at 30 June 2011 (2010:
$29,527,890).

LM MPF has settled the amount, including interest charged during the period through:
i) Cash sertlement of $1,251,039;

Z) payments of the Scheme’s fund expenses, management fees and net settlements on foreign
currency trades on behalf of the Scheme totalling $13,166,399;

3} payments on behalf of the feeder funds have been seitled by the feeder funds through
redemption of their investment in the Scheme (see table below);

KX
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11 RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Other transactions witle the Scheme (Continued)

4) payments on behall of the Schemne in relation to loan management fees paid to the
Responsible Entity for loan management and receivership services provided the
Responsible Entity on behalf of the Scheme in replacement of appointing external
receivers totaliing $3,284,002, These are reflected with the Joans and advances balance;
and

5} payments on behalf of the Scheme in relation to foan redraws totalling $765,738. These are
reflected within the loans and advances balance.

The payments made on behalf of the Scheme refating 1o fund expenses and management fees have
been reflected in the Scheme’s Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The payments made by LM MPF on behalf of the feeder funds have been settied by the feeder funds
through redemption of their investment in the Scheme. These redemptions of units in the Scheme
were not settied in cash, but as a reduction in the Scheme’s receivabie,

The Scheme’s external financier has approved this arrangement to settle the Scheme’s receivable
from LM MPF.

Scheme Amount
LM Currency Protected Australian Income Fund 510,878,396
LM Institutional Currency Protected Australian Income Fund $1,433,117
LM Wholesale First Morigage Income Fund 567,296
Total $12,378,809

John G’Sullivan is the beneficial owner of O”Sullivan Capital Management Limited, which has been
engaged by LM Investment Management Limited to provide marketing services in New Zealand, For
the year ended 30 June 2011, $95,645 (2010: $121,541) in adviser marketing commission has been
earned, with §162,609 (2010: $66,984) remaining payable. This engagement is on normal
commercial terms and at arm’s length,
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L1, RELATED PARTIES {Confinued)

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its afffliates including
directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by .M Investment Management Limited

are set out below;
Entity

36 June 2011

LM Currency Protected
Australian income Fund

LM Institutional Currency
Protected Australian Income -
Fund

LM Wholesale First Mortgage
Income Fund

Dhani Darcy

Total

Entity

30 June 2030

LM Currency Protected
Australian income Fund

LM Institutional Currency
Protected Australian Income
Fund

LM Wholesale First Mortgage
Income Fund

Dhani Darcy

Total

fnvestment  Interest heid Linits Units Distributions
at year end in the ssued redeemed paid and
$ scheme at during the during the payable
year end year year $
Ya # #
84,319,198 2221% 7,264,994 19,905,996 5,945,879
6,377,442 [.68% 320,651 2,328,849 430,529
76,681,193 20.20% 2953480 13,578,488 2,459,271
185 0.00% 5 - -
167,378,018 44.09% 106,739,130 25,813.333 8,835,679
investmient  Interest held Units Units Bistribations
at year end in the issued redeemed puick and
§ scheme at during the during the payabie
year end year year 5
% # #
118,040,000 24.12% 10,282,468 18,917,468 5,971,025
9,780,000 2.00% [,237,550 1,526,550 675,503
96,476,500 19.71% 4,767,643 2,768,443 4,769,522
226 0.00% 10 - -
224,286,726 45.83%  16,287,67] 23,212,461 14,416,050
35
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12. RECEIVABLES

2011 20610
b )
Morigage interest receivable 929,706 1,285,212
Penalty interest receivabie {32,446 174,998
GST receivable 674,721 176,815
Other 16,576 32,801
1,753,449 1,669,826

During the year, the penalty interest receivable was capitalised onto the secured mortgage loan balance.
Refer Note 8 Loans and Receivables.

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
%} Reconciliation of cash and cash equivaients
For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise:

2081 2010
$ 3
- Cash at bank and in hand 18,475,447 1,976,709

Cash at bank and in hand carns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $18,475,447 (2010: $1,976,7G9).

As at 30 June 2011, §351,071 (2010: $388,736) of cash at bank was held in foreign exchange marpin
accounts and was not available for use by the Scheme.,

The Scheme’s borrowing agreement requires the Scheme to hold a minimum cash balance of 36 million
#cross two bank accounts, one of which is a restricted account. The Scheme’s Fnancier is required
authorise cash outtlows from the restricted account (into which joan scttlement proceeds are received)
and in the event that the minimum cash balance is breached, the financier is required to authorise all cagh
outflows, including those from the unrestricted aceount which receipts interest from borrowers,

At the date of this report, the Scheme is in compliance with this requirement.

36
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I3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

b} Reconciliation of change in net assets attributable to wnitholders to nef cash flows from
operating activities

2018 2010
§ b3

Change in net assets attributable to unitholders {90,886,748) (1,262,942
Adfustments for:

Non-cash impairment expense 83,974,954 6,582,816
Non-cash interest income (31,158, 288) (50,847,584)
Distributions to unitholders 14,295,925 24,770,380
(Gains)/ioss on foreign exchange contracts (1,134,069 1,162,730
{Gains)loss on investor funds £,338,500 (1,031,253)
{Increase}/decrease in interest receivable 398,057 331,742
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 10,065,637 1,167,780
Increase/{decrease) in payables 2,353,983 1,566,785
Net cash flows from/#(used in) operating activities {10,752,049) {17,559,546)
¢} Reinvestment of distributions

During the financial vear, the Scheme issued $12,098,7G5 (201 0: $3,368,098) as a result of refnvestment of
distributions by unitholders. These transactions have not been included in the Statement of Cash Flows,

o) Financing and investing activities - non-cash settiement of refated party receivables

During the financial year, the Scheme received full settlement of its receivable from a related entity LM
Managed Performance Fund (“LM MPF™). LM MPF settled the amount owing to the Scheme by directly
paying the Scheme’s fund expenses, management fees and net settlements on foreign currency trades. These
payments have been reflected as a reduction of the loan receivable from LM MPF and are therefore excluded
from the Statement of Cash Flows,
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14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a} Details of Key Management Persennel
i Key Management Personng!

The Key Management Personnet (“KMP”) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible
Entity. The Directors of the Responsible Entity during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Marce Mulder Appointed 30 September 2006
Mr Simon Tickner Appointed 16 December 2008

Non-executive directors
Mr John O Sullivan Appointed 28 November 2007

(b} Compensation of Key Management Personnel
(1} Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Limited, appointed by L.M Investment
Management Limited as per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any
remuneration directly from the Scheme and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the
Scheme. The remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been allocated based on the each KMP’s cost
of remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to alfocate these costs (for disclosure
purposes only) are discussed betow.

(it} Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Manragement Limited are
responsibie for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible
Eatity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments ofthe
KMP on a periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder berefit from the retention of a high quality board. 1t is
intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost
for the Responsible Entity.

It is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other partics.

fiii}  Non- executive directors
Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors. This takes
into account workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director. Fees for duties as Directors are

not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terins and
conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 201§
4. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

fiv) Principles of KMP Remuneration Allocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been
allocated to ecach scheme, The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time spent by cach KMP
performing responsibilities and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocated the
remuneration cost to each scheme, Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsibie Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across all schemes.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Junc 2011

14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL BISCLOSURES (Continued}

Compensation by category: Key Management Personnel

1011 2010

b 3
Short term 319,767 228,281
Post employment 14,974 17,593
Other long term - “
Termination benefits - -
Equily based payment - -
Other - -

334,741 245874

Loans to Specified KMP

The Scheme has noi made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the KMP or their
related entitics during the period,

{c} Other Transactions and Balances with Specified KMP

Cther than those items disclosed in the related party Note 11, the Scheme has no other transactions
and balances with specified KMP.

I5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
a} Financial Risk Management QObjectives, Policies, and Processes

Risks arising from holding financial instruments are inberent in the Scheme’s activities, and are
managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement, and monitoring. The Scheme is
exposed fo credit risk, fiquidity risk, and market risk.

Financial instruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of
gencerating a return on the investment made by unitholders, in addition to derivatives, cash and cash
equivalenis, net assets attributable to unitholders, and oiher financial instruments such as trade debtors
and creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Responsible Entity is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that arise from these
financial instruments,

The risks are measured using 2 method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attributable to unitholders of the Scheme from reasonably possibie changes in the relevant risk
variables. Information about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is
disclosed betow. Information about the total fair vaiue of financial instruments exposed to risk, as well
a5 compliance with established investment mandate fimits, is also monitored by the Responsible Entity.
These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Scheme, as well as
the level of risk that the Scheme i willing to accept.
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Is. FENANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued;

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties within the Responsible Entity on 2 regular
basis as deemed appropriate, including the fund manager, compliance manager, other key management,
Risk and Investment Cominittees, and ultimately the Board of Directors of the Responsible Entity,

As part of its risk management strategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage
exposures resubting from changes in foreign currencies.

Concentrations of risk arise when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities,
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political, and
other conditions.

in order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Scheme monitors its exposure (0 ensure
concentrations of risk remain within acceptable levels and either reduces the £XPOSUre Or uses
derivative instruments and collateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise.

b} Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument wil) fail 1o discharge an
obligation and cause the Scheme to incur a financial loss.

With respeet to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Scheme, other than derivatives, the
Scheme’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure
equal fo the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the Statement of financial pasition. This docs
not represent the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a resuli of changes in vaiues,
but best represents the current maximum exposure at the reporting date.

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive
fair values.

The Scheme minimises credit risk by:

- underiaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
dealing with Austraitan regulated banks for cash balances; and

- obtaining independent valuations for all loans.

As at year end, 80.85% (2010: 61%) of the morigage loans were secured by 2 combination of
completed development projects (industrial 8.05% (2010: 14%) and residential 33.12% (2010: 41%)
and land 3.62% (2010: 6%)), 19.15% {2010: 18%) were secured by commercia! property and 36.05%
(2010: 21%) of the mortgage loans were secured on construction and development projects in the
residential and retirement sectors,

The carrying amount of renegotiated loans which would have been past due or impaired at 30 June
2001 was £21,465,636.
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